ALEXANDRIA

Alexandria is Tocated in Vernon Township in Section 8 & Section 9 just
below the confluence of the Des Moines & Mississippi Rivers. Originally
the town was known as Churchville. Francis Church made the survey & plat in
1833 to include seventy-three blocks and four public sguares. It was thought
that such an excellent location could not help but beccme a prominent town.
Soon several additions were made including Church's, Senford's, Wilcox's,
Ford's, Wright's, & Rose's. The first plat under the riame Alexandria was
Taid out in 1839 by the Mitchells. By 1848 the town's name was changed to
Alexandria due to "alleged improper domestic relations of the original proprie-
tor of the town" according to the 1887 History. An early inhabitant was here
by 1832 & running a ferry. In 1833 John R. Wilcox had a license for the
ferry. His rates were: a four-horse wagon, $2; a two-horse wagon, $1.50; a
man & a horse, $.50; a horse, $.18; a footman, $.25; a head of cattle, hogs,
or sheep, $.12%. Several other ferries ran across both the Des Moines & the
Mississippi in the early years.

Some of the original merchants were Robert Henning & George Gray, by the
1850's Brown & Bishop, Ed Harper, Moore & McCoy were doing business while just
prior to the civil war Maxwell & Johnson, Becker, Hoppe, Keeney, Cunningham &
Mitchell, Quisenberry & Foster, Fitzpatrick, & Beard were in business here.
Alexandria was very important to the history of Clark County as a commercial
center for shipping & trade. It was the headquarters for the Alexandria &
Bloomfield Stage Company and the Alexandria, St. Francisville, & Des Moines
steamboat line. Between 1858 and 1872, Alexandria was famous for the large
amount of pork packed & shipped. The town reached its peak in 1864 and was
known as the pork packing capitol of the United States, north of St. Louis.
Maxwell, Roe, Henry, & Pritchett were the leading pork packers. During the
years 1869-70, 42,557 hogs were slaughtered. There was a yearly mercantile
business of $250,000. The price of pork dropped drastically in 1872 and this




contributed to the decline of the town. The St. Louis, Keokuk, & Northwestern

Railroad was built through the town connecting Keokuk, Iowa to St. Louis. West
of Alexandria, the Missouri, Iowa, & Nebraska Railroad was constructed to con-

nect Wayland, Clark City, Kahoka, Ashton, & Luray.

Alexandria had a considerable number of businesses & establishments includ-
ing warehouses, two hotels, retail & wholesale businesses, newspapers, grain &
livestock buyers, doctors, lawyers, a blacksmith ship, a barber, several grocery
stores, and three churches (Methodist, Baptist & Catholic). At one time a large
cooper shop produced sufficiently to fill three railroad cars per day. There
was also the Alexandria College, which was established in 1870 by Professor T.J.
Musgrove. It functioned for about five years until the frequent flooding caus-
ed its demise, mostly due to the water preventing students from attending class.
There was also a dormitory plus there were several public schools. Alexandria
was the county seat from 1847 to 1855. A courthouse was built but a flood in
1851 made it obvious that Alexandria was not a good location. The county seat
went back to Waterloo.

The town suffered a major fire in 1862 which destroyed the Delta Hotel,
and at least seven other buildings amounting to a loss of $45,000. Several
other businesses beside the packing houses closed during the "pork panic".
Another fire in 1875 ruined several Targe businesses. The next "disaster" was
a large ice gorge in 1880 which formed in the Mississippi River & hit the town
so hard it destroyed several businesses & houses. High waters also wrecked
havoc in 1881.

According to a reprint in the Daily Gate City of February 12, 1911, there

was a "new capitol at Alexandria, MO". This golden domed structure was reputed-
1y worth ten million dollars and sat at the head of Page Avenue. John Page

had offered to donate five million dollars for a state capitol in Alexandria &
later doubled his offer.* After only a few years this capitol was destroyed by
fire. This seems to have been a frequent motif in the town's history. Floods

*He felt indebted to the town for the care & concern it had shown his family
after their Tosses in the fire in 1875 and a short time later the structure was
built. Inteeurban trains filled with passengers traveled to Alexandria each
Sunday to see the new courthouse. According to Jake Gates, it sat over the levy
north of town where the park is today. The site has been plowed over & no visi-
ble traces of the building remain.



& fires continued to damage the town. 1In 1947 a Tevee on the Des Moines
River broke, it rained three weeks, and residents were forced out of their
homes for one month. A large celebration was held in July 1948 to raise
$5,000 to incorporate Alexandria & in October this was accomplished. Charles
Gray, Sr. became the first mayor in 1949. The first woman mayor was elected
in 1958, this was Verna Rose Mitchell. In 1983 Alexandria consisted of nine
businesses, a Baptist & a Presbyterian Church, a school, the Kara Baptist
Academy, and two taverns in addition to the residences. On July 2 & 3, 1983,
Alexandria celebrated its sesquicentennial.
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€2 Funtier Tescuptiun ol IMperiant Fudtuies mhig gtyycture is a fine example of the Greek Revival Temple
style with its characteristic gable end entrance. The highly decorative cornice is pedi-
mented, heavily molded, has dentils, and paired brackets with pendants. There is a wide
freize & wide capped corner boards. Windows are square shaped, double hung & 6/6. Shutters
are gone. The single leaf entrance is on the southwest corner & has molded trim. On the
west side the clapboarding is gone in places exposing the heavy timber walls. The front (S)
portion of the west facade has no windows. It seems likely the rear 2 story section was
added on. Windows there have been altered on both the east & west to an elongated (cont)
43 Pustory e0d SWMRCINCE Ty o gtrycture is significant for its Greek Revival Temple style & for
its ornate details. Information was sparse. Apparently this was used as the parsonage for
the Presbyterian church across the street. A subsequent owner was Louie Spicer. It now be-
longs to Ira Jones.

4 Cescnptan ot Envirgnment and Juitbundings . . .
) This structure is situated at the northeast corner of the

intersection of Market & Mulberry Streets. It faces south, other houses are to the north &
east. i
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42,

rectangular shape on the lower level.
addition.

Across the rear is a one story gable roofed
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(2. Funther Cescnption ol Important Fuatures : . ! .
i Triple windows which are gothic arched are found under the

front & side gable peaks. The windows are stained glass. Above them is a quatrefoil trac-
ery round window with heavy molding. A square entry vestible/bell tower is located on the
northwest corner. The single leaf entrance has a stained glass gothic arched transom. The
tower rises to a molded & bracketed cornice with round arched louvers above (one per side).
Brackets are also found at the tower roof which is pyramid shaped & which continues to a
steeple. To the rear is a two story addition with a gable roof.

oy S ticance , . . . -
43 nustory o0 smmlicance This congregation was organized in 1847. Dr. George Alexander, Alice R.

Alexander, J.S. Henning, Susan Henning, James Watson, Elizabeth E. Hill, Priscilla Robertsonj,
Mary Robertson, & Ed®Win Hyde left the Des Moines Presbyterian Church so as to start a branch
in Alexandria. In 1851 they purchased a lot & "had the lumber in the ground" to erect a

church but "the great flood of that year washed the materials down the Mississippi River".
- {cont)

The‘building faces north & sits at the southeast corner of
the intersection of Mulberry & Market Streets.
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43.

At some point they built their church of brick. Little happened until 1856;

by then membership was down to three. 1In 1869 there were 6 new members. The
congretation was greatly strengthened in 1897 by 34 new members and in 1905 they
started a subscription list to erect a new church. After a delay due to flooding,
construction began on August 14, 1905 & this resulted in the church which stands
today. The building committee decided to tear down the old brick building & use &
sell what material they could. They built on the same site. Ed Weaver laid the foun-
dation & J.C. Waples was the contractor. The new building was dedicated on December
10, 1905 by Reverand T. T. Trimble & Dr. C.F. Richmond of Paris, Missouri. The
building committee included James A. Jenkins, S.H. Fulton, Charles Krueger, Fannie M.
Jenkins, Mamie Risser & Mrs. George Shaw. The women's group called themselves the
Dorcas Society in 1898, they went as the Women's Auxillary by 1921.

The church got a new roof, window repair, & a new furnace in 1938 & was debt-
free. Redocorating was done in 1939. Vacation Bible School was implemented in 1941.
Another flood occurred in 1947 & ruined the piano, pews, tables, bibles, hymn books,
& walls. These were replaced or repaired. In 1951 the porches & chimney were re-
built & the foundation was repaired. A two story annex 30' x 40' was added in 1953.
It was used for Sunday School & social meetings.

In 1957 money was borrowed to build a manse. Construction began in 1964. 1In
1965 membership stood at 125. The church is important both for its turn-of-the
century architecture & for its long standing association with the religious life of
Alexandria.
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2 Fyni Cascnptiun ol Impodtant Fudlures .
42 ruihet ° The front facade (N) has a central single leaf entrance.

Windows bordering it have been altered to a small square shape. Original doors & windows
have wide wooden lintels; these windows are 6 panes over 6 & have square shaped sash. Ad-
ditions are on both the east & west ends of the front. The area under the roof has been
filled in with clapboarding on the east & has a garage door opening. To the west is a
frame room with three part windows. Near the middle of the house the entire width is of
brick construction; this continues to the rear. A massive chimney is centered on the roof

(cont) |
43 rusiory end SUpCANCE e oar]y owners are unknown. Cort Rebo owned the property during the
period c. 1920-1940. R.J. Rebo (exact relationship to Cort unknown) was the state repre-
sentative & owned a~clothing store in Alexandria. Alice Davis, the Boones, the Duncans,
Walt King & Dorothy Alvis later owned the property. The house 1s important for its early
construction date & for its unusual appearance/plan. '

44 Qescrpnan of Eaveonment 30y QuIDUNGINYS The house sits in mid-Alexandria & faces north onto Market
Street. :
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42. & seems certain to have served a fireplace. The gable ends have a wide freize
with molding, eaves are also molded. The south facade has four bays at first level;
the center bay on the east is a single leaf door. Upper level bays are two windows
with the 6/6 pattern. This may have been the front of the house when it was built.
Since the photograph, masonite siding has been added to the exterior.
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house.
bases.

the freize is also molded & has dentils.
The front (north) facade has a single leaf door on the
The entry has beveled glass.

Tt is also single leaf & has a stone lintel & a transom.
They are 1/1, square shaped & have stone

at second level.

surrounded by sidelights and a transom.

entrance is above this.
dows are ta the west side af hoth

An impressive two story portico has been
Three large fluted Ionic columns uphold each outer corner.

The portico has a pediment with an imbricated eave.
A balustrade with turned posts

doors

The cornice

built onto the
rest upon stone

is boxed & molded,
crosses the porticq

They

east end. It is
The second level
Two win-
(cont)

13 Fisioiy «nd Sigmbicance

Ireland.

married Martha Ann Williams of Indiana.
two year old daughter, Mary J., James M. Johnson (14), & Nancy Long (26).

were from Indiana. Andrew Maxwel
was _head of the pork packing indu

The 1850 census shows Andrew Maxwell as a thirty year old merchant from

He was in Alexandria at this time & had a net worth of $1,500.
In their household at the time of the census was a

1 was born in 1820. The house was
stry in Alexandria from 1858-1872.

In 1847 he had

The latter two

built by Maxwell. He
The largest (cont)

¢4 Descrnipton o Eaveunmént 3nd Suibundings

wall defines the front yard.
drive leads_to_the rear to where

The house is situated on spacious grounds.
The Des Moines River is a very short distance to the east, over a small rise.
Large ancient trees surround the house.

a turntable existed.

It faces north
A low stone
The two track auto I
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Jake Gates
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1896 Atlas
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42.

43.

& sills. The wide frieze on the front facade has dentils with molding above.

Round pavilions with conical roofs were at both ends of the front facade, now only
the west one remains. These have columns on a smaller scale than on the portico.

A low wall of stone provides the base. An open air room or porch was at the south-
east corner. It too was upheld by matching columns & was crowned with a balustrade
with molded square components. A door at second level had access to this area. This
addition has been altered & rebuilt of molded concrete block. It is now enclosed.

The gable ends of the house have boxed returns, a wide frieze with dentils,
and paired, corbeled chimneys on the north. A window borders each side of the single
leaf door on the east end at second level. The west gable end has three windows at
both first & second story's. The attic has one window at both gable ends. 1In the rear
(S) is a one story brick gable roofed addition. An integral porch, now enclosed, was
on the west. At the east end a pent roofed frame room has been built on. Currently
the house is painted green.

amount of hogs were slaughtered in 1.869; 42,557. Maxwell & Foley were partners in a
slaughterhouse/commission house. When the Union troops overran the town, the house was
requisitioned for their hospital. Andrew Maxwell was prosecessionist & was a member
of the Citizen's Delegation to Colonel Moore's camp at Athens just prior to the Battle
of Athens. From 1858 to 1863 he was on the County Court after serving as county
treasurer from 1850-1854. In 1860 Maxwell owned two slaves. The Maxwell house was
used as the administration hall & a dormitory of Alexandria College. It also was
used as the 0Old Palmer Hotel. Remodeling was done in the early 1900's. Maxwell was
grandfather of the actress Elsa Maxwell. ¥

Later owners of the house are believed to have included Dr. F.A.S. Rebos,
Captain Hanlin (riverboat captain) & Viola Howell from c. 1920's to the 1950's &
the Simmons. The Smeltsers owned this property in 1965. Other owners were
Dwayne Balmer, Vernie Rose Griffin, Pete Pierce, Donnie Gregory & Jerry Gregory.

Located in the rear was a livery stable, slave quarters, & later an auto turn-
table. The house is very important both for its historical association with the
Maxwells & as an outstanding example of a 2/3rds I-house.

*The 1896 Atlas shows this as the Sage residence. D.H. Sage was born in 1865 in
Missouri. He married Annie in 1897. The 1900 Census shows her as 23. He was a
merchant & owned his house free & clear.













General Store of D. H. Sage, Alexandria. Mao.
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2 Funitier Seschptiun ol Important Fedtures  Thig typical plan 2 house is fronted by a hip roofed porch
with turned posts & square balusters. The centrally located door is single leaf & has
shutters. Front windows have 6 panes in the top sash. A wide frieze with molding is just
visible along with the remains of a boxed cornice. Any other details such as returns or
window trim has been obscured by the application of wide siding. Gable end windows are 4/4
and wquare shaped except for a 6/6 one at the northwest corner. A pent room is build across
the rear wall. A gable roofed ell extends to the north. A pent porch which is partially
enclosed is on the _east side there.

43 nosiory ead Swmilicance Tp the 1940's this house belonged to the Gilbos. Later owners were the
Simmons & then the Sylvesters. The house is important both for its early construction date
& as a good example of the "Z" style.

cnptian ot Envionment 30d Quidundin,
4 Descne ¢iRUneIS the house faces north onto Clay Street. A pent roofed shed

is to the southwest.

|
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12 Fuither Cescnptiun ol Impodtant Fuatures

The front facade of this two story I-house is highlighted by
a central single leaf door with four rounded, molded panels. Four light sidelights are to
either side; these are topped by a five light transom. The door surround is very wide &
molded. Two windows which now have a 1/1 pattern border the door on each side. These have
square shaped sash & heavy lintels & sills. The area above some windows & the door appears
to have been reworked. A wide cornice extends around this structure & ends in molded re-

turns. The east gable end shows evidence of a prior fireplace & chimney, now gone. Current
. (cont)

43 nistory ond SWMICANCE gy 1087 thare were at least three Rebo men in Alexandria. Richard Rebo
was born near Palmyra in Ralls County in 1832 to Bartholomew & Helen Rebo of France &
Kentucky respectively. The father came to Missouri in 1827 to Palmyra. He entered 400
acres of land below Alexandria & 520 acres near Waterloo in 1829. 1In 1833 the family came
to. Clark County. Bartholomew died in 1846. According to the 1860 slave schedule Helen

{cant)

Iocated at the nowthwest intersection of Washington &
Mulberry Street, the house faces south. Large trees dot the spacious yard.

i4 Descnptian of Envionment 3nu Quidungings
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chimneys are replacements. Basement widnows also have heavy lintels. To the rear
(N) is a one story gable roofed brick addition with a pent roofed frame room on the
east. A basement entrance is at the northeast corner.

owned four slaves. She died in 1867. Together Helen & Bartholomew had seven sons &
two daughters. Richard, Benjamin, & James remained in the area. Richard lived on
the family homestead near Kahoka prior to 1863 when he went to Alexandria. He estab-
lished a mercantile business there in 1883 which included staples & "fancy groceries”.
In 1858 he had married Ruby J. (Greenleaf) Lyle. After her death, he took Lucinda
Vice for his wife in 1862. Their children were Fannie L., William, Ella, Berry,
Cortas, Elizabeth, & Jefferson. Richard lived in this house, it is believed. 1In
1887 J.D. Rebo was a practising attorney in Alexandria. This could have been either
Richard's brother James or his son Jefferson.

Later = owners included the Brumhalls & Alice Davis.
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2. Funber Zescnpton ol Impodtant Fadtures qphe front (W) facade contains an elaborate porch with hip
roof, turned posts, a spindle frieze, cutwork brackets, and square balusters. It has been
painted in contrasting colors & shelters a single leaf door in the south corner. This has a
transom. The two windeows under the porch were altered to a 1/1 elongated rectangular shape
& have trabeated headers & shutters. Other first story windows have been altered in the
same manner, but second story windows retain their 6/6 lighting pattern. All are shuttered.
A plain frieze extends around the house. A small pent room is built onto the east corner.
The interior has_an octagonal newel post at the stairway & turned spindle balusters. (cont)
43 misioiy end Swpmlicance vy Mrg, Floyd Smeltser have owned the house for about nineteen years.
They had six children. Floyd has a barber shop & has been mayor. They purchased the properg
ty from Don & Juanita Day who had rented the house out.
According to abstract records, John R. Wilcox entered the land where the house sits.

In 1839 he died without a will & Pickering S. Stanley & his wife Elizabeth bought this
- : (cont)

The house faces west & sits at the NE corner of Mulberry
& Clay Streets. The back yard has a "living" well with water that comes in from miles away.

44 Description ot Enviegnment and Ouibundings

An outbuilding is on the south side. {3
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Window & door trim has bull's eye corner plates.

property. In 1853 James & Margaret Foley bought it for $500. Cortez & Isabelle
Johnson owned the property in 1891. It is believed the house was built during the
Foley ownership. A. Lutton was the owner in 1897; it next went to Margaret Foley
(1901), W.E. & Sally Breitenbucher (1920), F.I. Feaster, F.E. Feaster, (1927),

Donald E. & Ruth Breitenbucher (1942 - Donald was the sole heir of E.L. Breitenbucher
who died in 1939), V.E. & Sylvia Carter (1946), J.C. Hennessy {1951), & Donald Day
(1967). The Smelters purchased the property in 1967.

The house is significant as a good example of Temple style.




L



ANSON

Anson was a stage stop on the stagecoach line from Alexandria and
Bloomfield. There was a tavern, a general, store, a post office, & a
church. The town's nickname was "Greasy Point". Located in Section 27
of Grant Township, Anson today consists of about eight buildings.
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2 Funner Cesciptiun ol Imporiant Fuatuies A yeranda with ornate decoration extends around the front of
this structure. The main entrance is set across the SE corner diagonally. A large window is
to each side of this door. Other windows are elongated rectangular shaped and 1/1 with
trabeated headers. Diagonal latticework fills the porch area where a balustrade would be.
The posts are turned & have spindle bsackets. The foundation area under the porch is also
filled with lattice work. At the NE corner the porch is enclosed to form a pent roofed
room. Pent dormers are on the north g south . A corbelled dhimney is centered on th
roof. __The original wooden steps have been replaced by concrete ones. The two rear (cont)
43 nosiory e Smheance mhig house sits in the small community of Anson. In the 1878 Atlas
only a post office & the Shee & Cook residences are listed here. The town was also known
as "Greasy Point" & eventually grew to also include a tavern, general store, & church.
In the 1930 Platbook this is shown as the More (Mors) residence & included 18 acres. It re-
mains in the same family today. The property belongs to Mrs. Estel Morss (Morris). The
(cont)
Outbuildings are to the rear. The house sits in the "Y"
formed by State Highway 81 on the east & a gravel road on the west in the small community
of Anson.
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facades each have 3 bays. All entrances are the single leaf type and there are
two more on the east.

house is significant for its Eastlake porch ornamentation & its unusual square plan
which includes a diagonal entrance.
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(2. Funtier Cascnption ol important Fadtures

original front facade appearance was. Now the single leaf entrance is off center. There is
an unevenly spaced square shaped 2/1 window to each side of the door on this front (N)
facade. These openings are sheltered by a pent roof porch with chamfered posts. The gable

ends have 2 bays in the original ell. Asbestos siding covers any architectural details that

may have been present. A gable roofed addition is to the rear (S) on the west side. It

ends in a pent porch (S) & has one square 6/6 window on that facade. A pent roofed room is
to_the_eagt here

The house has been altered so that it is not certain what the

43 nisioiy «0d Swmihicance ohn gchee owned this property in 1878. The census for 1870 portrays himy

as a forty-two year old native of Ohio with a net value of $25,500. He was married to Mary
T., also from Ohio, and thirty-seven years old. Children at home were: William (16),

Charles Edward (13), James (9) & Lizzie B. They were all born in Missouri. John Schee ran
a business in Anson in 1878. He had been elected sheriff of Clark County for 1863-1866 and

(cont)

w4 Oescnptwon of Envitgnmeént and Quibuldings

this structure is only a short distance west of Cedar Creek. To the rear of the house is a
gable roofed structure with paired 6/6 square windows. <j;

Iocated just south of Anson on the west side of Highway 81,
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in 1881 he helped found the Clark County Agricultural & Mechanical Association. Not
only did he serve as a director of this group but also became president (1887). The
son harles had a dry goods establishment in Anson and was a stock & grain dealer. It
seems likely this was the same business his father was in. The store stood north of
here, on the west side of the road. Charles married Lorretta Mantle (See J-12) and
later ran a business in Athens. John Schee died in 1901 & Mary died in 1893. Both
are buried in the Anson Cemetery.

J.M. Wallingford is recorded as in possession of this by 1896. James Mark
Wallingford was a forty-two year old farmer from Illinois who owned his land free &
clear in 1900. Fannie, his spouse, was thirty-nine and had been born in Iowa. Child-
ren living under James & Fannie's roof in 1900 were: Sarah E. (20), Alta T. (19),

& Worthy E. (16). All were born in Missouri. James lived from 1857 to 1907 & Fannie
lived from 1859 to 1914. They are buried in the Anson Cemetery. The farm was passed
on to the son Worthy E. Wallingford. He owned 86 acres in 1930 and was married to
Hattie Peacock. There were six children in the family. Robert Wallingford bought the
broperty and his son Mark lives here now.

The house is important because of its long association with the Wallingford
family.










ATHENS

Located in Section 29 of Grant Township, this once busy river port town
was laid out in 1844 by Isaac Gray. Originally it's area consisted of nine
blocks but six later -additions increased it to 30 blocks. The town was
expected to prosper & reach a hiah dearee of importance. Georae Gray built
the first store here. The town faces toward the Des Moines River in the far
northeast corner of the state. At one time it was the center of commerce for
northern Clark County. Arthur Thome built a three story stone mill on the
bank of the river. Before the Civil War there were eight dry goods stores,
in its past Athens has also included general stores, a wagon shop, blacksmiths,
a pork packing buisness, a paint shop, a tin ship, and Taw & medical offices.
There was a two story brick school & a Methodist Church. Athens was the site
of the northern-most battle of the Civil War as the Union forces Ted by Colonel
David Moore defeated the rebels led by Colonel Martin Green. This decisively
estabiished northern supremacy in northeast Missouri. Athens declined with the
coming of the railroad & the end of the steamboat era. Now a state park is
located within this historic area.
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2 Funver Sesvnption ol Imporant Fudiuies mhe top course of the stone foundation is of larger cut & dress-
ed stones. The sill is of hewn log. Despite its early date & typical styling, the house
exhibits a fine detail at the eaves & cornerboards. The molded cornice has returns & the
cornerboards are chamfered with a cut away top & bottom motif (see photo details). The pri-
mary entrances have the classical doorways of the period with a multi-light transom & side-
lights. The house has a central hall plan. At the § end is an attached kitchen under the
same gable roof. It has single leaf doors to both E & W. It is to the N of the W door where
the famous cappenball hole is Jocated (see photo). At the SE corner is an integral (cont)

13 moicy el Swmhaance Aythur Thome, his wife Eliza, & their children came from Augusta, Kentucky
to Clark County in 1843 & settled in the Athens community. It is believed that he built this
house (1843-45) as a duplicate of his Kentucky residence, but on a smaller scale.
Eliza, b 1803, died in 1857. Arthur, who had established a large 3 story mill beneath the

bluff, between the house & the river, & a dam on the Des Moines River, was a successful
— (cont)

The house faces E toward the Des Moines River. It sits

on the edge of the bluff & in the extreme N of the town of Athens. There are no extant out-
buildings except the foundation walls of the large mill. The mill sits between the house -
the river beneath the bluff, almost at river level. Three walls remain. ‘They are app{gg%@?t—
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porch with a small pent addition within it. The gable ends are enclosed by
board & batten sheathing and a small windows is located at the attic level of
each end. Windows are squarish & 6/6. The residence is now covered by a pole
barn with metal roof.

businessman. He died in 1855 at age 80. It is unclear what happened to the house
at that time, but a son Paul S. & hig wife & family lived in Athens for a number of
years. Prior to 1861, the house came under the ownership of Joseph Benning.

"Uncle Joe" (1808-1893) & his wife Susan (1807~1887) were both from Kentucky; their

5 children were born in Missouri, beginning as early as 1834. "Uncle Joe" Benning
was among the earliest settlers of this area, in 1834 he settled two miles south
of Athen. He was such a talented hunter that his wife used to scold him for

bringing home so many turkeys. It is unclear who lived in the house following their
deaths, possibly M. Sadonia (1853-1921) but the house & property remained in the family
until 1970 when Lucy Sardonis Burner, a descendant, gave it to the Athens Park
Development Association. It was later incorporated into the Battle of Athens State
Park.

The house is significant for its early classical design. & for the role it
played in the Battle of Athens. Colonel David Moore was a charismatic man who can
be given much of the credit for placing northeast Missouri securely in the hands of
the Union. He began by raising a squad of ten men & through the use of handbills
eventually encouraged a large group of men to join. By June 1861, Col. David
Moore's Union "First Northeast Missouri Regiment" had about one thousand men
although half were usually gone at any one time to tend to crops & family. Moore
decided to establish camp at Athens so as to have supplies readily available through
river transport & to give reinforcements from Keokuk & Burlington ready access.

When Col. David Moore established his Union troops along the river at Athens in the
summer of 1861, a group of the citizens of the town (Andrew Maxwell, Chas. Sanford,
Capt. Baker & others) formed a delegation, assembled at this home on July 25th, &
invited Col. Moore to lay down his arms, to prevent bloodshed & to establish a
"peace". Supposedly Colonel Martin E. Green had a rebel force of 1,000 men with
500 on call and two cannons. The Union commander was prepared for battle, dismissed
the delegation, & met Col. Martin Green's Confederate forces on August 5th, 1861.
The ensuing : battle was the only battle fought in Clark County & was the Northern-
most battle fought west.of the Mississippi River of the Civil War. It was the rebel
artillery, under the command of Capt. J.W. Kneisley, that gave this house its nick-
name. The cannons fired down themain street of town, 300 yards away toward the
enemy troops, but shooting was erratic. One cannon ball went through the Benning
residence (see photo), many landed across the river, several as far away as 1/2 mile
into Iowa. Despite Col. Green's larger force & 2 pieces of artillery, he was de-
feated & NE Missouri remained under Union control for the remainder of the war.

The Athens' Mill served as a grist, flour & saw mill with a woolen mill on the
upper story. It is believed that a Mr. Colton, a relative of A. Thomas, became
manager ofter Thome's death. Following owners &/or operators were Major McKee, John
Parker, George Gray. Issac Gray & Hiram Beidman. Issac Gray was the founder of Athens.
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George Gray built the lst storehouse. "This building stood under the bluff,
near the present residence of Uncle Joe Benning." It is unclear if this
building was a part of the mill structure.

ely 8' - 10' tall & are of field stone. There are several small, arched windows
extant.
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«?

Funties Cescnption ol Impodlant Fedtures This typical T house has a 5 bay front facade & is 2 bays
deep. The openings are boarded but windows appear to be squarish & probably 6/6. The
boxed eave ends in returns. At the N corner is a 1% story gabled ell. It forms a small
integral porch on the E. The house sits on a log sill. The corner studs are also of
heavy timber.

43

risioty e0d SWMICANCY The gmith family owned this structure & used it as a hotel. Alex Smith
was living in Jessamine Township in 1840 (this later became Grant Township) and he served
as the justice of the peace. This may have been the same Smith that owned the hotel as the
hotel dates from the 1840's. Athens was laid out in 1844 & in its early days was the cen-
ter of commerce for northern Clark County. Known as the 0ld Hotel, it served as a hospi-
(copt)

44

Cescuption of Enviroament and Juibuidings . ] . . . .
The building is now located within the park boundaries.

It is fenced & there are no outbuildings. It faces SE, is in what was once the business
district of the City of Athens (the N end of the City),& sits on the W corner of Spring &
Virginia Sts, A large open park area now extends to the N & W.
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tal during the Civil Wat & as the headquarters of Moore's Union troops. John A.W.
Smith married Isabell P. Shackelford in 1863. They lived here for guite sometime.
Isabelle (b. 1839) died in 1903 & in 1906 John A.W. (b. 1837) married Louisa M.
Bryant. John Smith still resided here about 1910 although the structure no longer
served as a hotel. He died in 1916 & is buried, along with Isabell, in Athens
Cemetery. Louisa Bryant lived until 1940. Robert L. Smith (possibly a son of

John Smith) also owned the property. He married Ada F. Loveless in 1887 and they had
two children. Robert L. lived from 1864 to 1929 & Ada lived from 1866 to 1929. They
lie in Revere Cemetery. The property was sold to Andrew Gallord. He owned the

0ld Hotel in the 1930's & 40's. The last person to live here was a woman from Fort
Madison, Iowa whose name 1is unknown.

The structure is significant as one of the very earliest built in the county
& especially because it is an example of a sophisticated style - the I-house-
rather than the more commonly built early log structures.
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22, Funther Cescniptiun ol imporiant Fadtures . .
Y The roof has a molded cornice which rakes at the gable ends

where there are returns. The building is accented by stars at the ends of reinforcing rods.
Wood sills & lintels frame the 6/6 rectangular windows. Some have been altered to 2/2. The
transoms over the single leaf entrances on the S & E are closed. A 1 story rear ell is
frame & it too has 6/6 windows. On its W facade it has an enclosed pent porch.

d Sgmhicance . .
43 hialory «nd S James Townsend, son of Rives H. Townsend (b. 1815, Maryland) who came to

Clark County in 1830 & married Elizabeth E. Bedill (b. 1823, Kentucky) in 1846, was a poli-
tician, merchant & &t one time the largest grain dealer in the northern part of the county.
Born in 1847, James purchased a 1/2 interest in 1868 in the stock of goods of John Stafford,

the firm being Stafford & Townsend for 8 years, after which Townsend became sole proprietor.
(cont)

Located in the central part of Athens, the large house !
faces SE onto County Road CC. It sits on an embankment. It is located outside of the park
area.
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During this time James married Addie Whetstone in 1870, however she died the
following year at age 22. 1In 1873 Hattie Curtis, daughter of J.C. Curtis of

Athens, became Mrs. Townsend & bore 6 children. This was the Townsend residence.
About 1876, T.M. Gare became a business partner. James was elected to a 4 year term
in 1882 as Circuit Court Clerk. During this time his parents ran the mercantile
operations in Athens. Upon his return in 1886 he again became sole proprietor &
increased his business. It is unclear what year James & his wife died or moved

away from the area, they later moved to Keokuk, Iowa.

Later James (1843-1916) & Emily V. (1846-1929) House made this their home.
James House originally came from Ohio, "Emma" was from Iowa. Living in their
household in 1900 were Frances L. (18 & of Missouri), Lillie Davidson (30 & their
married daughter), Vern (9), & Cora (l1l). The later two were the grandchildren.
Owen King (27), a nephew, was also here. They lived until sometime in the 1920's.
Harry Bedill also lived here a number of years.

The property is currently owned by Lonnie Gray. It is significant as a fine
example of an early brick I-house.
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located centrally on the front (NW) facade.
are on the 1lst story level of the tower.
siding obscures all other detailing.
a central aisle leads to a platform in the SE end.

There is a chair rail with beaded siding below & new paneling above.

Windows are rectangular & .9/9.
Double leaf doors give access into the interior where
The gambrel ceiling has been lowered.

A square bell tower, which has been slightly altered, is
A gingle leaf entrance & a pointed arched window

The current wide

A

43 iy end Spmilieanct Organized in 1867, the congregation of the Athens Methodist Episcopal

Church was lst served by Rev. W.J. Stubbles, who also served in Alexandria.

Neither location

had buildings that year, but both had Sunday Schools, with the lst recorded enrollment of

150 from both communities.

The Athens Sunday School continued until 1956.

This building

was constructed in 1868 under the auspices of the charter members including Albert M. Doud,

(cont)
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& faces NW onto County Road CC.

The church sits in what was once the central part of Athens

m._mlaunauon

1878, 1896,1915 Atlas

History of Clark County Churches
1887 History

6. Prevared oy Linda Harper
Margaret Feller HPC

47. Qrganizanon NEMO
Reaiopal Planning Come

4g. Oate (49 Aevision Datets)
11/82 )
7/84 ‘




43.

George Wilson, & family, & William French, & Rev. Robert H. Collins.
Timber was cut by Hamilton Hanson & Alber Doud. Chambersburg, Athens & other
northern points belonged to the Athens Circuit in 1887.

In 1901 the building was painted & the interior redecorated. It was again painted
in the late 1940's and new carpeting was added. 1In 1952 oil lamps were replaced by
electricity, and in 1961 the coal & wood stoves were changed to an oil furnace. The
inside had been reworked in 1953, but new floors were laid in 1961. In 1966 an exten-
sive amount of work was done to the church: interior was completely remodeled by
lowering the ceilings & paneling the walls, & a new gas furnace was installed. M.E.
Westerbeck was the carpenter & in addition to the donated labor & materials, the
renovations cost $1,200. Rededication services were held on New Year's Day 1967. 1In re-
cent years the United Methodist Church has been covered with a new exterior sheathing.
The belfry was lowered slightly at some point.
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CHAMBERSBURG

Simon Conway & Henry Snively opened the first store here in 1837. That
year also marked the establishment of Chambersburg. It is about eight miles
northwest of Kahoka. Another store was run by Jack Noe in 1850. The village
eventually had a post office, a school, two churches and several residences.
Later a man named Edmonson ran the store. The St. Thomas Catholic Church was
built in 1883 & the Chambersburg Methodist Church was built in 1875.
Chambersburg is in Section 17 of Jefferson Township and today consists of
approximately eleven buildings. The Catholic Church no longer exists & the
Methodist Church was rebuilt in the 1920's.
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posed rafters & knee braces on
tibule on the SE corner.
tracery.

has three tall narrow gothic arched windows.
There is a wide hoodmolding here.
(N) is the cellar entrance.

On the rear

This rectangular plan church has a steep gable roof with ex-
A square bell tower serves as an entry ves-|
The double leaf entrance here has a gothic arched transom with

the wide eaves.

The door has an ornate design of raised panels ‘with a border.
These are 4/4 within the top arched portion.
Also on this side is a five paneled single leaf door.

An altar bay is on the west.

The east facade

Remaining windows
(conty

43 risioiy e0d Swgnihicance

place.
building.

were held & Baptisms took place in the Fox River.

In 1836 the Reverand John Martin came to Chambersburg as a circuit
rider & organized the Methodist Church. ' For years the schoolhouse was used as the meeting |
This would have been the Brown schoolhouse which was east of the present school

This was also the site of the first Sunday School.
Around 1875 the congregation applied foé

Large, long revival meetingsf

(cont) I

44 Qascriptan ot Envitonment and Quidundings

away to the rear.
Directly across the highway is

The church faces south onto road NN, the lane slopes

An outhouse is to the NE, the cemetery is to the W & NW, this is fenced.
The Catholic church no longer stands

the Catholic cemetery.
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43.

match those on the east.

a Methodist church at Chambersburg. The application was signed by William
Wickell, William Yalton, Willis Mayvhew, and Conrad Wasters. A church was built
and in 1894 a belfry was added by Ham Hanson. John Mantle donated the bell.

That church was destroyed by wind in 1921 & two years later the present church
was complete. Reverend Brott preached the dedication sermon, he was a former
pastor. This church was erected under the trusteeship of J.A. Seamon, T.F. Lakin,
and Fred Hopp.

Ministers who served here have been the Reverends: Schultz, Lewis, Boone, Burk,
English, Martin, Kions, McBeth, C.W. Woods, Rose, Ingram, Brott, Francisco, Campbell,
Monroe, Toops, LaFrentz, Skinner, & Hemmerla. S.A. Kaylor was the Sunday superin-
tendant for many years; he was the janitor, bell ringer, & a conference delegate.

The church is important both for its long history in this area and as an example
of the vernacular type church built in the 1920's.
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42, Funner Sescnphion of impodtant Fudtures This large 2 story brick I house shows restraint in its
adornment. The 5 bay front facade has a centrally located lst floor single leaf entry; the
door is gone but an Eastlake screen remains. Sidelights with 4 panes in the top half and
with wood panels in the bottom half along with a 6 pane transom frame the entry. Large stone
lintels and sills are located on all the doors & windows. The 2nd story's 5 bays are all
windows (E), these & all the other windows are square shaped & 6/6. A wide wood cornice

topped with a single line of moldind%}uns' across the front & back facades. The brickwork
is common. hond Four iron tie rods adorned with stars are found on the front of the (cont)
43 Pisi0ry e0d Semleanc i1 14 am Wickell owned this house & land in 1876. 1In the 1870 census,
William is shown as a farmer of 42 years who was born in Ohio. His net worth was $9,000.
Cassandra was his wife, she was 37 & born in Ohio. At this time William & Cassandra had four
children: Elizabeth (ll),"Misourf‘(9 & female), Clara (7), & Lewis E. (4). Also in the
household was Sarah Gray (28), who was a domestic. William lived from 1828 to 1896 &

{cont)

The house sits atop a rise back from the gravel road

<4 Descnption of Envioament and Juibuidings

which runs north of Chambersburg.
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house and 2 are on the gable ends. The gable facades have no fenestration. The
cellar entrance is on the W end of the § wall. A large stone lintel is over this
entrance & the cellar window beside it. On the N & S gable facades there are wide
boxed returns & the gables are filled with vertical boards that end in half octagon
shapes. The N gable has an interior brick fireplace. A one story gabled ell is
located on the NW end of the main ell. It has a pent roofed room extending to the
SW & a pent roof porch reaching from this room to the main block of the house. A
chimney serviced a stove in the west gable end of this ell. Two single leaf entries
are found under the pent porch, one in the main ell & the other in the one story
ell. There is a concrete floor under the pent roof. Another single leaf door is on
the N wall of the small ell. It & the main entry have stone stoops. The interior
has a central stair with a massive newel post, rounded bannister, & cutwork scrolls
on the stair brackets. The stairs, woodwork, & flooring are apparently pine but the
large presses flanking the fireplace are walnut. The mantle is covered with white
paint so the wood type is uncertain; it is decorated with heavy plain panels and
molding. The house has been vacant 6-7 years.

Cassandra lived from 1833 to 1903. They are buried in the Chambersburg Methodist
Cemetery. Also found here are the children Wesley, Charles E., & Ida, who all
died at young ages. The Wickells were a prominent & wealthy family. They were
still the owners in 1898. It is not known who the builders or owners of the house
were before the Wickells. By 1916 this was the A.E. Kerr property. Alvin (1880-
1970) & Mary (1883-1958) (Jenkins) Kerr had two children: Forrest & Viotet. The
parents are buried in Kahoka cemetery. Forrest & Beatrice (Morrison) Kerr lived
here after their marriage. Patty (Kerr) Wood was born in this house & lived here
until she was about 1 year old. The children born to Forrest & Beatrice were: Ida
Mae, Patty, Hollis, Hillis & Stuart. Most of them live in the Farmington area.
The next owners were the Dietfrichs. Bert Dieterichmay have gotten the property
from the land bank in St. Louis after the Kerr's ownership. Bert's son Francis
got the property from his father. The father died in 1981, the son recently died
& the estate has not been settled. Boyd & Patty Wood are hoping to buy the
property.

The house is significant for its association with the prominent Wickell family
& as a fine example of the early brick I house.
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The Chambersburg School has an inset entryway on the south
Within this area is a double leaf door which has glass on top & 3 horizon-
There is a two light transom over both leaves.
is filled with rough wooden shingles & a palladian style louvered vent is centered here.
Simple wood molding surrounds the arched vent & the two square
The S facade has two 1/1 paired attenuated windows flanking the entryway.
have heavy shutters made of vertical pieces of lumber.

(front) facade.
tal panels on the bottom.

the vent.

openings on either side of

A plain wide board runs across the

The gable end

These

(cont)

43 rmisiciy «o0d Signdhicance

it was called School #1.

to as the Jefferson” Township voting place prior to 1887.
been built & it was known as the Chambersburg school and/or the Wickell School.
significant as a fine example of the post turn-of-the -century rural school.

A school existed in this location at least by 1878 if not earlier.
William Wickell had built a school here by 1887 as it is referredj
By circa 1910 this school had

Then

It is

44 Descuption of Envionment 3nd Quidundings

side of the gravel road whlch goes north of Chambersburg.

Chambersburg.

The school building faces south and is located on the west
It is about 1/2 mile north of
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front exterior at ceiling level. The building is covered with clapboard & has
plain cornerboards. The E facade of the building has no fenestration due to the
wall-length blackboard located on the interior. It also has a Palladian shaped
vent under the gable. The W face of the school has 2 square shaped 1/1 windows on

either side of an exterior chimney that was used with a stove. The N facade has

eight double hung 1/1 square windows running along its entire length, creating a very
well 1lit interior. Rafters are exposed on each gable end. Trabeated trim is found
over the doors & windows. The interior has a wide vestibule with coat hooks, on
either side is a small square room or perhaps office. The main school room hasa
chair rail, trabeated window trim & wide baseboards. Several old school desks
remain.
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The front (S) facade has 5 bays of which the

This 1% story gable roofed brick house has square 1/1 win-
dows which were apparently 6/6, as one of these remains in the rear.
tels & sills are found on each window.

Plain wide wood lin-
center

one is a single leaf door of glass on top & 3 horizontal wood panels on the bottom. A

transom above the door is now filled with wood.
Six courses of corbelled brick form the cornice.
At least two of these served stores.

(3).
neys are on each gable peak.

Iron star tie rods are used on the
The masonry is common bond.
Stones are used

house
Chim-

for

{cont)
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in 1870. Hi s
three yvears old.

personal worth was listed as $8,800.
She was a native of Indiana.

Atlas although this house's appearance dates it to 1850-1860.

property & house is shown as belonging to Sarah A. Townsend.

James A. Townsend was a farmer born in Maryland who was forty-eight

Sarah was his wife & was thirty-

No house is shown on this site in the 1876
By the time of

James A. had died, he lived

1898 the

(cont)
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gravel road.

The house is about one mile north of Chambersburg on a

It is set back from this road & located on a small rise facing south.

rear is a large barn, other outbuildings are to the east.

To the
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stoops. A one story gable roofed ell projects to the rear & a single leaf door
is on its W side; a chimeny for a stove is in the gable end while a pent roof
frame porch addition is attached to the E. side.

A boxed stair is located in the center of the house.

from 1822-1879. Sarah lived from 1838-1917. The children living at home in 1870
were Liborn A. (12), Gidian (9), Edward (7), John H. {(4), Mary (2), and a Lucinda
Mosier (12). All these children were born in Missouri. Children who died in
infancy were; William A. who died in 1860 when he was one and Rives Henry who died
in 1877 when he was one. These Townsends are buried in the Chambersburg Methodist
Church Cemetery. By 1916 this house was the property of Liborn A. Townsend who
lived from 1857 to 1931 and had married Pernie E., who lived from 1868-1961.

Wes Irvin says the Townsends were farmers; they raised Black Angus cattle & his
dad, Ernist Irvin, helped with this operation. Subsequent owners were Ray Elder

& then Ben Elder, next the house was rented to Dewey Soaper. The house has been
vacant for about fifteen years. It is significant both for its long association
with the Townsend family & for its early date of construction as a brick structure.
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42 Futtier Jeschwtion o Important Faatures This gable peaked clapboard house retains the original wood
shingles. The windows are 2/2 and attenuated. Features of the house include capped corner-
boards, a raking cornice, a gable roofed dormer with one window over the porch, and a trun-
cated hip-roofed porch in the Eastlake style which is decorated with a spindle frieze. The
main block of the house faces E w1th two single leaf doors on the front facade. A pent porch
has been added to the SW, with 4 4/4 windows. The house is heated by stoves. The porch on
the north is collapsing.

13 misi0ny a0d Swpmhiedncs Th the 1876 Atlas this land & a residence upon it belonged tO G.-W. HEAth:)
The 1870 census shows him to be twenty-three years old & from Chio. He was a farmer & had
a personal worth of $¥50. His wife, Amanda, was also twenty-three. George W. Heath lived
from 1847 to 1904; Amanda lived from 1847 to 1928. They are buried in the Chambersburg

Methodist Cemetery. To this union were born John W., who died in 1881 when he was three,
44 Dascnptian ot Environment 3oy OutBuddin (cont)
- Y3 There are 3 outbuildings to the SW; the house 1s located

in the Y of the rural road, directly south of the Fox River north of Chambersburg.
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Woodford who lived from 1873 to 1912, and possibly'Edward, who lived from 1872
to 1940. After the Heath ownership the property is shown as belonging to L. (or
C.) E. Schee in 1898. The John & Mary Schee family was located in the next
township, Sweet Home, and John was the sheriff from 1863-1866. He'was a founding

member of the agricultural association organized in 1881 & the president of it by
1887.

John & Mary Schee had a son, Charles Ed Schee. He was born in 1857 & went
into partnership with J.W. Townsend in a dry goods business in Athens in 1887,
prior to this he had a business at Anson. In 1880 he married Lola B. Mantle, the
daughter of John Mantle, and they had two sons. According to Wes Irvin, Ed Schee
built this house. This would have been Charles Edward. Irvin believes that John
Mantle had the original land grant for this area. The property owned by G.W. Heath
in 1876 included the house which was west of this house. (Now gone) ILola B. Mantle
& her sister, Mrs. Harr, eventually ended up with these two houses which seems to
indicate that John Mantle had been connected with this property. He owned the pro-
perty in Section 7 in 1876. By 1916 this property (J-12) was owned by L.B. Schee,
a decade or so later it belonged to Frank Schee. It is thought Gail Martin owned
this later. The present residents are Wes & Hattie Irvin. They have lived here
fifteen years. Wes's family; including his father, grandfather, & great grandfather;
were all from this area. The Irvins have five children: James, Tony, Tammy, Marie,
& Arlen. The house is significant as a good example of the gable peak type & for
its association with several early families.
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This house has a central single leaf door on the front facade

The top half is glass while the bottom features a carved scroll design. Windows are 1/1
rectangular shaped & trabeated. The house has capped cornerboards & a wide cornice. A rear
ell is of two stories, to its east is an enclosed pent porch room of one story. Although

it lacks paint the house seems in good condition.

13 rmisiory e0d Sigmiicancu

According to the 1898 & 1916 Atlases John Kaylor owned this property at
these times. A John Kaylor is discussed in J-8. He died in 1894 according to cemetery
records. There may have been another John XKaylor, possibly a son, but there are no records
establishing this. More likely it was the John & then E. Jane Kaylor estate during these

yvears before it went to the son Samuel. By the 1920-1930's this property was Samuel A.
(cont)

Casclipts 1 Envigninéat 3anyg .

44 Cascnonan of EnviGAMEnt dnd Quiduriaings A well is found on the north side of the yard while barns
& outbuildings are situated to the west. The house is south of Chambersburg on the gravel
road off of NN. The front facade faces southeast.
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43. Kaylor's. No subsequent owners are known.

Currently the house is vacant. It is notable as a fine example of a later I
house dating to the 1890's & showing the long building tradition of this particular
style.







DUMAS

Dumas was situated in Sweet Home Township in Section 14. The village
was created by the construction of the Santa Fe Railroad. Civil engineers
recommended the name Dumas to the railroad company & it was adopted when the
town was established in 1887. Ben Armstrong was the first merchant & soon the
town also had a post office. Additionally there was a church (M.E. South), a
sawmill, and the Santa Fe tank. In 1899 the Christy general store opened. By
1900 Dumas was described as a picturesque town on the Des Moines River. The
railroad bridge which had been completed in 1887 was rebuilt in 1927 to a
double track structure. Cement supports replaced the original ones of cut
stone. The railroad depot closed in 1927. The original store run by Armstrong
was.last run by the McPherson family. It & the post office closed in the 1920's.
The old Christy store was last run by Riley Jones. It consisted of two stories.
with the upper Tlevel housing a hotel. This closed in the 1930's. The area's
first school was built of log & sat at the bottom of the bluff near Dumas Creek.
A frame school was later built north of Dumas Creek on a hill. Mrs. Evelyn
Teel taught the Tast term. The depot was purchased by David Teel & moved to
his farm about .1945. As of September, 1983 both the school & depot were
standing. Paul & Evelyn Teel are the last remaining residents of Dumas.
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F Cascnptiun ol Im . . .
42, Funier Cascubtion ol impadant Fastures originally consisted of one

has an enclosed pent porch with
block are 6/6 & sgquare shaped.

This house is believed to have
story. It has heavy timber construction. The front facade (E)
a central single leaf door with a transom. Windows on the main
On the south wall the paired 4/4 rectangular window was used as the Dumas depot/ticket window
in 1887. The interior of this structure has an early octagonal newel post and brackets on

the stair (to the rear). Other gable end windows are 6/6. A pent room addition has been
built across the rear (W) facade. This houses the kitchen & living area. On the north

corner is an enclosed pent porch with a continuocus band of windows on 3 sides. The (cont)

43 rusioiy end SwmliCance 74§ o thought that one of the Waylands owned this property in 1849. A
Mrs. A. Wayland is shown as the landowner just to the north of here in 1878. An Abraham
Wayland lived in Clark €ounty in 1850 & owned 7 slaves. This property was owned by J.M. Little
at that time. Several John Littles were in this towhship & it is not known which was the ‘
owner. By 1896 this belonged to A. Christy. The 1900 census shows only Albert Christy,

(cont)
The house faces east toward the river (Des Moines) & the
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railroad track is just to the south.

|

46. Preparud oy I.inda Harpe
Margaret Keller H%Cﬁ
47. Qrganizaiian

449 Suuices of,Inidnmanon
1878, 1896, 1915 Atlases
Marriage Records 1900 Census
1850 slave Schedule 1983-Personal Interview with Resident,
Cemetery Inscriptions of Clark County
01d Settler's Special Edition of the Media, 9/14/83

1930 & 1981 Platbook

NEMO

Reqiopal Plapnning Camm
48. Date |49 Ag¢wision Date(s)

1983 ]
769/198




42. cellar was built by the Armstrongs, it is under the north end.

43. seventeen years old, and the son of Henry & Sarah Christy of Kentucky. It is doubtful
this Albert would have been the owner at age thirteen. It is known that a Victor Christy
worked here in the section house. A subsequent owner was L.E. White by 1915. Leaf White
didn't live here. He married Cecil E. Frazer in 1911 & lived from 1871-1944. He is buried
in Revere Cemetery. Then by 1930 Robert H. McPherson was the owner of this property which
consisted of at least 151.96 acres. Marvin & Reta McPherson were here 5-6 years. In 1927
the depot had closed down. David Teel was the last depot operator. Apparently this house
was used as the depot as early as 1887, when the railroad first came through. The large
window at the south end of the house was used as the ticket window. The railroad track is
just to the south of the house. Later a separate depot building was in use & it was this
building that David Teel bought & moved to his farm in 1944 or 1945.

Paul Teel married Mary Evelyn Howell & lived here in 1940. They bought the property
in 1946. ©Paul & Mary Evelyn had three children: Dorothy Kussman, Mary Redding, & Rex
Paul.

The structure is significant both for its early age & for the part it played in the
history of the railroad & the town of Dumas.
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FAIRMONT

This community is Tocated in Section 21 of Washington township. It was
surveyed in 1851 and originally consisted of eight blocks and a public square.
Surveyors were T.A. Gassoway & James Owen. Additions were made in 1852 by
James QOwen & in 1885 by Thomas Rowe. The town arew to contain sixteen businesses
in a short time; the Fairmont Plow & Wagon Factory was the town's main industry.
It was set up in 1857 by M. Mills. Also in operation was a saw and corn mill.
Two churches were built; the Baptist & Methodist denominations were active.

They were both constructed by 1879. By the 1880's and 1890's the town contained
about forty residences. Fairmont was a busy stage stop in its early days. Pro-
duce & livestock were shipped out via Canton. The town also served as a major
recruiting point during the Civil War. A stockyard operated here as much live-
stock from the area was either bought in Fairmont or shipped from it. A planned
railroad from Canton on to Memphis never materialized in spite of preparation
that included gradina & some rails put down. This lack of rail service led to
the establishment of Wyaconda as a more important shipping center.

The town retains two schools, two churches, a grocery, and about nine
residences today.
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42 Funhes Sescnwtun of important Fastures 5 onpy yestibule features double leaf doors with a seven
light transom (E). Its gable roof is highlighted by an open air belfry with a pyramidal
roof, topped with a ball & finial. The door & window headers have a classical pedimented
configuration. Generally windows are 6/3, elongated, & rectangular shaped. The south gab
facade has the attenuated center window sided by ones of less length. The cornice rakes o
the gable ends. Interior millwork is plain & of oak. The altar rests along the west wall.
A single leaf entrance gives basement access, north of the main entrance.

W

43 rustoiy end SWmhEINCE whon Faiymont was settled in 1851, according to the article by Mrs.
Pfeiffer, the congregation of this church met in the brick school southwest of town and
also in a white frame school located near the cemetery road.. In 1879 a building was raisedﬂ
for the Methodist Episcopal Church & the Methodist Episcopal Church South. It was also

used by the Christian Church congregation until they constructed a building in 1888 in
: (cont)
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The church faces east, a small outbuilding is to the north-

west. Several old trees grace the spacious church yard.
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Wyaconda. The church ground in use today was deeded to the M.E. & M.E.S. Church
in 1900 by Kate E. Brown, heir of Isaac Brown of Denver, Colorado. The last Sunday

School in the old building was held in October 1839, then the church was demolished

& the current structure was built, by October 27, 1940. It remains in use today.
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KAHOKA

Situated nearly in the center of Clark County in Section 24-25, Lincoln
Township, Kahoka was among 25,000 acres that belonged to William Muldrow in
1856. He was a native of New York who had come to Missouri in 1838. Several
early settlers bouaht portions of this ground to establish a town. Actual
survey work was done by Hiram H. Hiller & completed in 1856. John Dramling
built the first residence in town using frame construction. He traded a gun
& a watch for the lot. E.Z. Shannon ovened the first business, a dram shop:
Mr. Huston started a blacksmith business; and William Bush opened a dry goods
store in 1858. By 1857 the town had about six houses, the next year saw the
establishment of a post office. The post office was used as a Chinese laundry
in the 1890's. The first school began in 1857 & that same year proaress re-
sulted in a nublic well. Kahoka had its first hotel by the next year. Built
by W.H. Huyck it was of two stories and had eleven rooms. The 1860's saw the
setting up of the John Spanaler drinking establishment & the Jordan aeneral
store. A celebration was held on July 4, 1861 by Colonel David Moore & his
men at the town square. Other businesses by the mid 1860's were Sansom's
blacksmith shon, a meat shop, & Jacob Trump's shoe store. Shortly after Dr.
Joseoh Myers opened his drugstore on the southwest corner of the square which
was later used by the Clark County Courier (1901-1952). Kahoka was incorporated
in 1869. Mr. Trowbridge came to town to become the first depot agent & tele-
araph operator.

Kahoka eventually became the county seat. Muldrow had kept his title to
the city nark when the Tand in Kahoka was nurchased from him. For this reason
when Kahoka was chosen as the county seat in 1870, the site for the courthouse
was not the Tikely choice of the town square. Rather the site was a few blocks
northeast of the city park. Mr. & Mrs. William Johnson & John Hiller worked
out an arrangement so the land & $12,000 was available for the courthouse. It
was built in 1871. The flag first flew there in 1872 & continues to fly there
today.



After Muldrow died, the city got a clear title to the city park. Mr.
Owens & his sons planted trees there. Cahoka became Kahoka in 1874, the name is
indian in origin. In 1871 the Clark County Gazette was printed by E.B. Christy.
The cost for a year's subscription was one dollar. Other papers in Kahoka's
past included the Clark County Democrat, the Kahoka Journal, the Kahoka Herald,
the Kahoka Gazette-Herald, the Free Press, the Clark County Courier, & The Media.
The Media was started in 1977 by Hazel Bledsoe. She purchased the Gazette-Herald
in 1978 & combined it with The Media to publish a paper which serves the entire
county.

By 1887, Kahoka had grown to such a size that it included six dry goods
businesses, eight groceries, two drugstores, three hardware stores, two stove &
tin merchants, three blacksmiths, 1 jeweler, 1 qunsmith, 1 furniture store, four
hotels, three butcher shops, two barber shops, one ice cream parlor, one restau-
rant, a marble works, two grain dealers, two livery stables, a billiard room, a
boot & shoe maker, a lumberyard, two dealers in machinery including farm imple-
ments, wagons, buggies, sewing machines, etc. and a poultry dealer. The town had
its own steam powered flour mill with rollers. The town exported mules, horses,
cattle, hogs, sheep, poultry, wool & grain. Several fires hindered the town.

The east side of the square was destroyed in 1880, except for one brick building.
In 1901 the north side of the square had a major fire that damaged and/or destroy-
ed seven buildings. A Tater fire in 1967 caused much damage on the south side.

The town had its share of financial institutions. 1In 1874 the Clark County
Savings Bank was organized & in 1893 the Kahoka Savings Bank was begun. Next to
be set up was the Exchange Bank of Kahoka which was in the Hiller family until
1963. In 1975 the name was changed to the Commerce Bank of Kahoka. In 1968 the
Kahoka State Bank was established.

Several churches figured in Kahoka's past. The Congregational Church started
here in 1865, while in 1866 St. Paul Evangelical Church was set up. Some early
Sunday schools were held in the schoo] (1869). In 1869 the Union Sunday School
was organized. Prior to this in 1862, the Kahoka Methodist Episcopal Church
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begqan. 1870 saw the Southern Methodist Church start. The First Baptist Church
of Kahoka was organized in 1873. The Cumberland Presbyterian Church opened in
1880, in 1883 the Presbyterian Church came into existence. The Christian Church
started in 1886. The St. Michael Catholic Church built its church in 1897.

In 1884 it was decided that Kahoka should have a college. The site was
chosen at the north end of Washington Street. From 1885 to 1896 the college was
in operation there. The four room brick public school was constructed in 1872.
In the Tate 1880's the seventh & eight grade classes were moved to a separate
two story brick building. The early 1890's saw the construction of another
four room brick school building. In 1906 the district bought the old college
for its use & by 1917 had built a new school on Jefferson Street, south of the
railroad.

Kahoka has a large cemetery east of town, originally it was part of the
land grant Isaac Diamont received in 1836. By 1896 Kahoka had a 1ight & water
plant. Then A.H. Frazier had the contract to supply these utilities. Kahoka
had no lack of cultural resources due to the establishment in 1893 of a library
by Miss Lida Hiller. The present day Sever Library was built in the late 1940's.
By 1871 Kahoka had railway service. The Chicago, Burlington, & Quincy Railroad
completed a line through Kahoka that year, although it then was known as the
Keokuk & Western Railroad. The last train ran in 1982, tracks have been removed.
The depot built in 1896 to replace the original one (which burned) still stands.



the Cornbelt Cube style, the Z style, the Gable Peak style, the Hip style,
and houses built in the decades from the 1940's onward. Efforts were made to
have either the most outstanding example of a type surveyed or else to record

one very common representative of a style.
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2. Funner Descnptiun ol Impadtant Fudlures A tyo gtory portico with pediment graces the front (N)
facade. The Ionic columns have been recently replaced & now have faceted sides, they rest
upon brick bases. A balcony is situated under the pediment at second story. level and has a
balustrade with square posts and a diagonal design. The cornice area has dentils. The
front facade windows are generally 2/2, rectangular shaped and have double rowlock segment-
ally arched headers & stone sills. The front entrance is single leaf and has a transom
with a double rowlock segmentally arched header.. At the west gable end, a one story 3 sidedj
polygonal bay has been added while on the east gable end a two story similar bay has (cont)
43 noiory ond Swpmihcance William Muldrow first had this land back in 1839. Several groups of
individuals are listed on the abstract as having been involved with this property through
1850. In 1857 C.B. Turner came to Missouri & located on a farm which was very likely this
one. It is known he owned 280 acres here by 1878. He was born in 1845 in Iowa to C.B. &

Eliza Turner who were both natives of New York. In 1868 C.B. married Emily Brown (b. 1848)
& together they had six children: Harry, Carrie A., Cornelius B., Fausta E., (cont)

44 Descupuan of Envioament 3nd OuiduIINYS Ty the south are several large metal barns a wood Darm,
and other outbuildings. The house faces north & sits back in a large yard from Highway EE
to its north. A stone smoke house is at the SE corner of the house. It retains the origin-
al meat hangers.

48 Suul(.ui. ol.lﬂ'\’f""ﬂ“on . 46. Prepared oy

Interview with Mrs. Trump Abstract Margaret Keller HPCE
1887 History, p. 971 1878, 1896, 1915 Atlases 7. Orgamzanon NE‘.MO—

0ld Settlers Special Edition of the Media, 9/14/83 Regiopal Plannine
Cemetery Inscriptions of Clark County Y Oaleﬂa ) ﬂi:!:olnqgmg‘?rm

1910 Census

11/84




42.

43.

been built on. Major remodeling done at the turn-of-the century included these
plus the portico.. Also lower windows at the east gable end were filled in and a
fireplace was added. A two story rear ell is constructed of a different softer
brick. It has three types of windows and was probably the first house. Evidence
for this ell to predate the front portion of the house is that one window remains
(west) that has a 1/1 square shape {the upper and lower sash both have a square
rather than rectangular shape). These probably had a 6/6 lighting pattern. They
have flat headers and are an earlier type window. The ell also has 1/1 square
shaped windows at the rear, but these have double rowlock segmentally arched head-
ers. Several windows have .also been altered. On the west facade two windows were
added between the lst & 2nd level and a corner window has been changed to a more
elongated shape. A pent porch room is enclosed & sits at the southeast corner.
The gable ends of the main block have large molded returns & a molded cornice ex-
tends around the building.

The house was sandblasted by the Trumps & in 1980 it was tuckpointed & siliconed.
It had been coated with yellow paint. They also rewiredq added new plumbing and
attic insulation. The Trumps have been working on the house about ten years. The
interior was updated at the turn-of-the century. The major change was the addition
of the grand stair which rises in a "1" shape. Two large Ionic columns decorate the
lower area & the stair reaches the second level through an enclosed door & window. The
wood for all these ornate additions is golden oak. An entry vestibule was enclosed
& an oak seat built into the wall. This wall has been removed. Double french
doors with beveled leaded glass give entrance into the living room & dining room.
The living room fireplace features Ionic columns & green Italian tile (new). Generally
the woodwork is molded & fairly plain: Ceiling molding is ornately done in plaster.
Upstairs are wide plank floors. A bathroom retains the early fixtures; a clawfoot
tub & marble topped basin along with beaded wainscotting. Doorknobs & plates are
brass. The rear ell has pine woodwork, most other wood in the house is oak. There
is a back stair directly behind (enclosed) the main stair. The Trump's have not
made many changes. They have repapered, took out a wall that enclosed the butler's
pantry, & remodeled the kitchen by adding new cabinets & extending one wall. The
house retains the flavor of its early days because of the tasteful choice of materlals
used for recent work & sensitivity to the houses earlier appearance.

Charles C., & William H. Turrer was occupied as a farmer & was in the grain & elevator
business for a short while. In 1883 he established Turner & Vandolah; a hardware,
farming implement, boiler, engine, wagon, & buggy business. By 1896 the atlas shows
the house & land under the ownership of A.F. Turner. In 1900 Col. Dick McDermott
bought the property. He had an international reputation for raising purebred short-
horn cattle. He was responsible for all the grand scale changes to the house but as

a speculator he was later beset by financial problems & in 1904 the farm went to a

Dr. Beard. 1In 1910 James C. & Lottie Harkness bought the property from Beard.
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(cont)

They were the parents of Graydon Harkness. After his marriage in 1917 to
Ermin Spangler, the young couple lived here. After Graydon died, Ermin

stayed in the house until she entered a nursing home. They had the
Harknessville Stock Farm. In 1929 Karl Trump came to live with the
Harknesses. He married Dorothy Sheffler in 1938 & they lived with Graydon &
Ermin until they could get a home of their own. 1In 1943 the Trumps bought land
at the west edge of the Harkness farm & moved a house there from Luray. They
moved into the Harkness home in December 1982 although they had been restoring
it for about eight years prior to that date. The Trumps have a large stock
raising operation & specialize in piggs. They run a "country store" in the
enclosed pent porch room. They have three children. The house is filled

with beautiful antiques from both families & there are several pieces from the
Harkness line. They have the cradle Graydon's grandfather made.

The house is significant as a fine example of the 2/3rd's I house built
in brick. It is also important for its early construction date (especially
the rear section) and also for the changes which took place at the turn-of-the
century & now are significant in their own right.

Cemetery records show C.B. Turner, Sr. as having died in 1891, at age 65.
He is buried in Kahoka Cemetery. A.F. Turner lived from 1845-1914. James C.
Harkness appears in the 1910sas a fifty-year old farmer from Missouri. Iottie was
44 & their son James Graydon was 20. They owned the property but it was under a
mortgage. James C. lived from 1858 to 1925 & Lottie lived from 1865 to 1952.
They are buried in Kahoka Cemetery.

The first owner of this property, William Muldrow concocted a gigantic real
estate. scheme about 1836. He planned to establish a palatial institution of learn-
ing in the center of the wilderness in Clark County. He had three New York
investors furnish him with sufficient funds to buy {(enter) two townships of land.
He planned for the college(s) to be self-supporting by an ingenious plan. In the
center of each township, 4,000 acres were to be laid off & all income produced
from this land would support the school & give a fine return on the investment.

A belt surrounding the campus was to be sold off into lots for a town. Muldrow
would get 1/6 of the profit on town lots, 10% of the whole profit, plus 2,800
acres. By this agreement Muldrow got $28,000 cash. He only entered land in one
township, in the center of the county. He predicted this would be the "capital”
of the county & turned out to be right. KXahoka sits upon that land today. The
scheme failed ardthe investors sued Muldrow because of disatisfaction due to his
lack of accomplishing his plan to create colleges & towns.
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€2 Futihel wa3cnpll poctar Y% The front entrance (S) is on the gable end. The original

porch is gone, thirty years ago the enclosed pent roofed porch was added. Windows are
square shaped double sash with the original 6/6 lighting pattern remaining. Wide molded
boxed returns & molded eaves grace the upper area. The east side has a single leaf door
at the north end, its transom has been covered. The north gable end has a central single
leaf door, now closed. On the west side, a pent porch replaces an earlier frame ell. Here
there are two single leaf entrances at the north end. A concrete patio porch is located
(cont) |
43 rmisiory «0d SWimhEINCs The watsons bought the house thirty years ago. Vincent Watson was the ’
parts manager for Martin/Daniels Chevrolet. He & his wife Catherine have two sons. She has
run a beauty shop in-~the east side of the house for many years. Vincent is a former City
councilman of Kahoka. They bought the house from Jim Templeton. Previous owners were Mrs.
Christian & Nellie Elam. In 1924 it belonged to Mrs. Tolman. It was the Rauscher home.
(cont)
The house faces south, a garage is to the north and a
covered patio & shed are to the west. g ‘
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here & a deck was recently built onto the front. The house was stuccoed about thirty
years ago. A bath has been added. The built in gutters were covered over. Woodwork
is pine, sills are wood, the stair is cherry with spindle posts & a round newel post.
The timbers beneath the house are 17" x 3". Much of the interior has been covered with
contemporary paneling.

It is believed this was George Rauscher. He was born in 1842 in Ohio to George &
Christina Rauscher, who were both natives of Germany. George (the son) volunteered
for the Civil War & became a member of the 14th Iowa Volunteer Infantry. After one
year he was discharged because of disability. In 1871 he came to Kahoka & entered the
drug trade. After two years he started in general merchandising. He was well known
in public & private business. 1In 1874 he was elected county judge, then he was elect-
ed county collector in 1880 & 1882. In 1886 he became county clerk. George married
Christina Young (b. 1841 in Germany) in 1867 & they had the following children:

George H., Lottie, Ella, Charles, Albert, Geoxrge J., & Walter. George Rauscher was
partners with Jacob Trump in a dry goods, notions, & boots merchandising business.
By 1900, George is shown as a widower in the census. He owned his house free and clear.

The house .is significant for its early construction date & for its unusual
gable end front facade. Mr. Watson relates that the indian chief Kahoka had a wigwam
set up in what is now his backyard.







office of Historic Preservation, 2.0. 30x 175, Jefferson Citv, Missour 55101

HISTORIC INVENTORY

— §. Present Namul)
{ HO
K~3 .
— Kahoka State Bank/Kahoka Fabric
?éf"”; § Quher Namels)
ar ' K
1 Locatian 0l Negelived R /L/
NEMO Regional Planning Conuwi. Montgomery Opera House
LuCatlion 16. Theinalic Calogury 8. No. of Slones
< g
§ Seecne 29. Basement? Yas 1¥
201-209 W. Commercial 17 Date(s) or Pusiud No .
Lot 12 Blk 7 - Original Town 1890 30. Foundahon Maienal
X coursed stone
Town % Rural, Township & Vicuuty 818 Style or Dasiyn
1 Cay ut Vernacular ‘ 31, wall Conslruchion
Kahoka T brick
T Plen with Nuith Al 19. Arctulect of Eogindse
8 Sau Ple N 32. Rool Type & Mutenial
L .
20. Contraclor v Buuder truncated hip/asphal [
33. Ho. ol Bays shingle
Front Sige
21. Qngunal Use, 1 3pparum 0 6 e 12
Commercial ) 34. Wall Treatment
22 Present Use common bond
Commercial 35. Plan Shaps rectangular
23 Ownership Pubbic I} 38. Changus Agagition X
Private Xi (Explain Altered 1y
i 4 Moved
24. Ownar's Nuing 3 Address, in #42)
il Rnown 37, Candgition
intarnor
\ . UTM
7] C.ulnu Nates Extenar qOOd
Loivy ) 25. Open tQ Yes X\ 38. Preservation Yes -
10 Sates 14 Structurg | e Puohic? No 1! Underway? No Ix
Buddimg 1 Qoisci 11 a6 (ocal Contact Persan o Qrganization 39. Endangered? Yes !t
: : 1 ? NO I
,',—-Qn Pealiandd Tuy b 12 151t Yes X NEMO Reqgional T’l«‘mnlnq Comm. 8y What &
by slat? HO W Ehgibte?  NOo Tl By Oinge Surveys n Whicn Inctuded
T Part ol €310 Yea i 14, Distnct Yos i 40. Visidie lrom Yes 'y
rust Uit ? No K Potent'1? No ¥ i Public Roag? No vt
—_— N 41. Distance tiom ang
B . | Esiabuisned Oistnct
o e 9 ‘ Frontage on Road

<2 Funiel Caschpton ul Imporiant Foatures  The front (S) facade on the lower level has been modernized
with tile., The portion which houses the bank has smaller windows replacing the originals.
The entrance is still set diagonally across the SE corner but has been changed to a single
leaf door. A square post has been placed at the corner and a pent overhang runs the length
of the front facade. At the upper level, the 1/1 rectangular shaped windows are recessed
and have double rowlock headers. A stone sill course extends across the front facade here.
A double window is slightly off center. There is a massive cast iron cornice with a large
fan shaped pediment. This says "McDermott & Montgomeéry Block - 1890". The cornice (over)
73 risiory end Swymhcance  This structure was known as the McDermott & Montgomery Block when it
was built. In 1874 William McDermott was a stockholder and cashier in the Clark County
Savings Bank. He had been born in 1825 in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania. In 1860
William McDermott was shown as the owner of two slaves. He was an original member and
officer in the Clark County Agricultural & Mechanical Association in 1881. His wife was
Miss Louise Masely. (over)

w4 Descipuon of Eavironment 3nd Juibuldings This structure sits facing south onto the original
courthouse square in downtown Kahoka. It is located at the NW corner of Commercial and
Morgan Streets.
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area is detailed with stubby brackets. It continues around the east side of
the building. The top half of the front windows has been closed. At the
east side the water table course is visible. First floor windows are 2/2

and rectangular shaped with stone sills and segmentally arched double rowlock
headers. These windows are also recessed as on the front. The east entrance
is single leaf with sidelights and transom. Upper windows are 4/4 but

of the same shape as those below. A single leaf door is reached by..exterior
stair and is not original. It has a very high transom. Corbeled chimneys
remain on the west roof but have been replaced on the east. A rear brick
addition is of one story. It has a corbeled cornice. The rear of the main
block has been stuccoed and has a double leaf door with paneled surrounds.
Five small windows have been added on the west side.

Theodore L. Montgomery was born in 1855 in Kentucky. He came to Clark County
in 1869. In 1879 he graduated from Missouri State University and then read law
under Ben E. Turner. He was admitted to the bar in 1880 and in 1881 married
Mary Jordan (b. 1858). They had six children by the year 1900. In
1887 Montgomery was prosecuting attorney of Clark County and in the law firm
Wood and Montgomery.

In the 1896 Atlas this building is shown as the Montgomery Opera House. The
bank was on the first level and Boulware and Martin had a "Drugs, Wallpaper,
and Stationary" store next to the bank. One former retail business located
here was the Seyb Emporium. The upper level was used as a movie theater after
the opera was discontinued, then it served as a basketball court and finally
as apartments. Now it is vacant. It currently houses the Kahoka Fabric

store and the Kahoka State Bank.

The building is significant for its use of cast iron ornamentation at the
cornice and for its long standing commercial use in Kahoka.

William McDermott lived from 1825-1897, Mary Louise lived from 1830-1912.
They are buried in Kahoka Cemetery. They had seven children, two survived
by 1910. Iouise was a native of Kentucky.

Theodore Montgomery lived until 1939, His wife, Mary M., lived until 1908.
They are buried in Kahoka Cemetery. The 1910 Census show Theodore as a
widower with Lenna J. (24), Olive F. (20), Sidney J. (16), Hiram E. (12),
and Mary M. (10) at home. He owned his home free and clear.
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2. Funner Cescnpniun ol Imponiant Fedtures The front facade is oriented to face south & is located at
the gable end. Gable ends have molded returns. Eaves are bracketed & molded & there is a
wide molded frieze. Large paired brackets uphold the returns at each corner. The elon-
gated windows have round arches, stone sills, & a 9/6 lighting pattern. At attic level
are round attic lights. A wrought iron balcony is at second level on the south. A window
here raises & provides exterior access. The first level entrance on the south is single

leaf with a fan transom with petal shaﬁed lights & a recessed paneled surround. The side-
light & transom have been covered. All doors were double leaf and there was one on (cont)

43 niioiy e0d SWmEANCE origina)ly Clark County had its county seat in Waterloo in 1837. That

year $4,700 was appropriated for construction of a brick courthouse. This was completed
in 1839. 1In 1847 the county court received a petition to change the county seat to
Alexandria. The voters approved this & by 1849 the two story courthouse there was com-—
Pleted. But this site was plagued by flooding & in 1854 the voters approved moving the

(caont)
The courthouse faces south. It sits in the north central
part of Kahoka & is surrounded by a large park with abundant playground equipment, an
historic marker, & a picnic area. Highway 81 is to the west.
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each facade. The foundation of rubble is topped by dressed ashlar stone which ends
in a watertable.  Rectangular basement windows are exposed. The west door has been
altered & is immobile. The center bay on the east is a window but the north door
retains its double leaf configuration. Brackets at the eaves have been enclosed.

An octagonal cupola with a round drum crowns the roof. It is topped by ridgecresting.
The cupola has paired brackets at its eave & long narrow round arch windows as in the
main block of the building. Windows are separated by cornerboards. The cupola

sits on a square base which now has vertical narrow siding. The exterior was stuccoed
in 1934 as a WPA project & as a result the quoins & hood molds are no longer visible.
The interior features Grecian Ear woodwork, heavily molded baseboards, and a curved
stair. The chamfered newel post has a ball finial, turned balusters & a molded
handrail. The underside of the stair has applied molded rectangular panels. The
wainscotting has been mostly replaced by paneling. Doors are four paneled with three
light transoms. The basement houses the jail & sheriff's office & has an exterior
access:;on the east. The north rooms of the first floor were built as fireproof
vaults. There were cross plan interior halls but now only the north/south hall
remains. The east/west hall space was used for room expansion. Ceilings have been
lowered for conservation purposes. The second floor contains a large courtroom, a
conference room, judge's room, jury room, & bath. County offices are on the first
floor.

courthouse back to Waterloo. The original courthouse was repaired & back in service
by 1855. In February 1865 the state legislature passed an act to relocate the county
seat once more, to a more central location in Kahoka. In June the county court
received a petition asking that the county seat be changed from Kahoka to an area

in Section 21 east of Kahoka. Clark City was selected & the title procured for
several blocks there. This was reported at the October 1866 term of the county

court. That November elections were held & the seat of justice was thought to have
been "legally & permanently" located at Clark City. The battle continued over the
site, meanwhile the county court & its records remained at Waterloo. Finally, in
1869, Kahoka was selected & in 1870 the county court reported that Block 5 was select-
ed for the site of the new courthouse. Private investor John Hiller donated $12,000
raised partially through Johnson's& others donation of about 40 town lots to Hiller

& Company and a citizens subscription of $2,000. The county court appropriated
$10,000 in bonds. A bid was made by J.G. Orr & P.H. Conners, contractors from
Quincy, to construct the building for $18,985. Peter S. Washburn & W.B. Lakeworthy,
an English architect, filed architectural plans which were approved in December, 1870.
Construction continued through 1871 & in January 1872 the lst term of the court was
held in the new building. The final cost was $22,815.86 of which the county was 86
cents short. Warranties had raised $815.

(W



K-4 (cont)

43. The building is significant both as an example of an 1870's
courthouse that basically retains its original form and for its many
decades long relationship with Clark County and the events in its past.
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«2 Funther Cascnptun ol Impodant Featuwres A small gable cap covers what serves as the front entrance
(8) which is a single leaf door with the transom covered. First level windows on this
facade are 1/1 and square shaped with double rowlock segmentally arched headers. The roof
has been altered and lowered. Its previous form was a high flat topped gable
style. The upper level windows on the south facade have a 6/6 lighting pattern in a small
square shape. At the west gable end, the upper windows have been reduced from a larger
double rowlock segmentally arched window. They are also 6/6. The east gable end has a
basement entrance and an upper level door made from what was a window. The rear (over)

13 misiory end Sigmhicance In 1878 a grist mill sat on lots 3 & 4 of this block, It was a
"flouring mill". This was likely the same building that stands today. The 1896 Atlas
shows Charles Holdefer as the proprietor of "Kahoka Roller Mills" which used the "latest

improved roller system". The mill was steam powered. Two large lakes were to the north
in lots 4 & 5. This may have been the source of water that was converted to steam.
(over)

4 QDescnption o Environment 3nd Quibungings  The building faces south and sits one house up from
the corner of Clark and Jefferson. There is a large yard to the north, east and west.

45 Suuicys 01, InlQamanon 46, Prevacud cy

1887 History Mar ’
1argaret Feller IHPC
1878 & 1896 Atlases 47. Qrganizatbon  YEMO

1900 Census i ;
Reaional Planning Comm
- 48. Date |49 Aevision Qate(s)

11/84




42.

43.

addition has been removed. Rafters are exposed and sills are formed of cement.
Star tie rods were utilized.

By the 1920's the roller mill was not in operation. The building sat idle for
many years and was then converted to a residence. It appears to be vacant today.

The structure is important as one of the early extant business buildings in the
town.

Charles Holdefer is shown in the 1900 Census as a native of Germany who was born
in 1847. Elisabeth, his wife, was born in 1853 in Iowa. Their children at home
in 1900 were Charles F. (22), John H. (20), Alma B. (18), George (13) and

Emmie Ella (6). The three eldest were born in Iowa, indicating the family came
to Kahoka between 1882 and 1887.













KAHOKA ROLLER MILLS, Chas. Holdefer, Prop.
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2 Funier Cescnptun ol Imporiant Featwes  The front facade (E) has a single leaf entrance with
transom at the south corner. It sits recessed within paneled surrounds with molded caps.
A truncated hip roofed porch wraps around the south and east sides of the front ell. It
is upheld by square posts with molded faces and large cutwork brackets to the sides. Porch
eaves are also molded and feature paired brackets of a smaller size. Ornate iron cresting
provides the decoration for the porch roof. Windows on this portion are square shaped
double sash with a 4/4 lighting pattern and pedimented headers. A gable peak ell of short
dimensions protrudes on the south side of the main block. It has a three sided (over)

43 nnigry «nd Suymiicance This house was built by Colonel Hiram M. Hiller in 1875. He was a
Civil War veteran, had a general store, became a court reporter, and finally followed a
legal profession. -

He built this as a town residence for his wife and family of six children. The house
has now been home to the Hiller family for five generations. Col. H. M. Hiller was a
partner in the law firm Matlock s Hiller In.1884 he was a stockholder in the Kahoka (Over)
¢4 Descnpuan of Envieament ang Outdurdings This structure faces east. The yard has brick walls
laid out on all sides and landscaped gardens along with a latticed "arbor." A fence
surrounds the yard. The house sits at the southwest corner of the intersection of Clark
and Washington.

45 Suuices 0t InlQnmation 486. Pvépau.-d oy
Mr. and Mrs. Hiller 1900 Census Margaret Keller IPC
Quincy Herald Whig - 11-17-68 7. Grgamzstion  NEMO :

1896 Atlas Reqi i
: eqional Plannirg Comm
1887 History . 48. Date |49 RAewision Date(s)

11/84




42.

43.

polygonal bay with decorative recessed panels beneath the windows which have an
elongated rectangular shape. A single leaf entrance with transom is at the

upper level of this projection and faces east. The gable ends of the house have
substantial molded returns and there is a wide raking cornice. Capped corner-
boards add to the restrained but ornamental appearance. On the north side is
another three sided polygonal bay. The rear ell is slightly inset from the

front on the north facade. A single leaf entrance is at the west end of this
north facade. A molded water table course extends around the house. The interior
has molded woodwork and four paneled doors with transoms which are open. The
south bay window has a window seat. Just east of this is a stained glass topped
window which is an enlargement of a former door. Ten years after the house was
built an indoor bath (for bathing) and kitchen were added. The two story addition
is at the rear (SW) and replaced an open air porch/lattice construction. Original
floors were pine; oak boards were laid in the 1930's. An indoor toilet was in
place in 1934. Originally stoves/chimneys were in every room. The house has had
seven furnaces in this sequence: wood, coal, oil, coal, oil, oil and the present
one. Space was dug out under the north room to make room for the furnace. The
house was raised in 1968 and a full concrete basement was poured. A bay window

on the north was used to enlarge the bathroom. Plastered walls and ceilings were
torn out and replaced with dry wall. Woodwork had to be removed for this work, it
was refinished and then replaced. Some changes were made because of the resulting
different wall thickness. Some woodwork was added to the house from another old
house in town (former kitchen/current dining room) but the end result is an
original appearance for interior woodwork. Storm windows have replaced shutters
and the iron railing substitutes for what was wood. Floors were refinished and
the roof was replaced. Stained glass windows have been added. Two have a seasonal
progression motif depicted with irises. The house has a back stair; the front
stair is of walnut with a round newel post and one turned spindle per riser.

The present wallpaper is as close a match to the original pattern as possible.

The living room has moorish patterned ceiling paper and an 18" figured border.

The house is furnished with many outstanding antiques, some of which are original
to the house. Interior woodwork is white pine from Keokuk.

College and on the board of directors. He donated the tract of land at the north
end of Washington Street for the college which was built as a two story brick
building in 1885. Hiller was a stockholder in the Clark County Savings Bank when
it was organized in 1874. Hiller's Addition to Kahoka was surveyed and laid out

in 1871 and consisted of twelve blocks. He was the Clark County Clerk from 1865-
1870. 1In 1869 he and others applied to the county court to appoint commissioners
to select a site for the seat of justice; they had to petition the Missouri Supreme
Court to make the court do this. Hiller and Company donated $12,000 for the
courthouse. He and others had bought the land where it would be built from William
Johnson and they actually donated the land for the courthouse. Hiller was an
original member of the Clark County Agricultural and Mechanical Association in

1881 and was a member of the Clark County bar.

The 1900 Census shows Sarah Hiller as a widow. She was born in 1837 in Pennsylvania.
Her children at home were Hiram H. (33), Elisabeth H. (30) and Sam S. (28). Hiram
H. listed his occupation as physician and Sam listed his as bank cashier.
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Continued

After his death, his widow kept the house until it became property of her

grandson, C. Stuart Hiller. His son, Hiram, and his family were the next
residents. Hiram Hiller returned home from the army in the 1960's. He and
his four children (Lida, Laura, Lovena and Hiram T.) lived here with his
mother until she died in 1965. Hiller married Anne Huiskamp of Keokuk and
they refurbished the house and reside there today.

The house is significant as a fine example of domestic vernacular architecture
from the 1870's and for its continuous association with the Hiller family.










HON. H. M. HILLER,
KAHOKA, MO.
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F Cescnptiun ul Imporiany Fadtures C .
42 Fullner we3stnblt pora e The front facade (N) has a pent porch addition extending

across its length & upheld by groups of doric columns. The single leaf entrance with a
narrow transom is slightly off-center. The windows flanking the door are all square shaped,
double-hung, & have a 6/6 lighting pattern. Gable ends have massive ornamental pilasters at
the corners with scalloped molded faces. The cornice is molded, boxed, & has a cutwork
scalloped motif. Gable ends have large boxed returns. Pent dormers have been added in the
front & back. A rear ell is also 1% story s. To its east is an enclosed pent porch room.

43 risioty o Sujmhcance , . : . .
This house has been considered the oldest in Kahoka & from 1its appearance

this seems likely. The square 6/6 windows, rubble foundation, & unique, early style mold-
ing lend credence to~this idea. Also notable is the fact that it was here before Kahoka,

according to Mrs. Herbert Sherwood. It sat here when this was farmland. Charles B. Sherwood
owned the house in the past. 1In 1887 he had the Sherwood, Dowell, Bott Mill which did(cont)

44 Descoption 1 Eavionment and Quibuildings  mhe house faces north & sits in a spacious yard at the
southeast corner of the intersection of E. Main & Lincoln. The old horse barn from when thig
was farm _Jland is to the rear, along with a garage.
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43.

custom grinding of corn & buckwheat. C.B. Sherwood was not the original owner.

His son Elmer & wife Iva lived here for two years when their son Herbert was an
adult. It was just purchased from Elmer's heirs by Herbert's son James within

the last year. The Sherwoods have been in business here since C.B.'s time. In

1902 C.B. Sherwood & Hanslow bought a grain elevator from Dowell & Hassack. In 1922

Elmer owned the business & ran it with his sons, Arthur Bradley, Herbert, & James R.
It remains in the family today.

The 1870 census shows William Sherwood as a 43 year old farmer from Connecticut.
His wife Elizabeth was 43 also & at home were the following children: Charles B.
(22 & listed as a brickmaker), Sylva (19), Georgiania (17), William (19), Emma (13),
Mary (8), Ida (6), & Clarence (3). Emma & the oldkrchildren were all born in Connecticut,
this would seem to indicate the family came to Missouri around 1862. BAn earlier owner
of thie property may have been the Clarks.

Charles B. is shown in the 1900 Census as 52 years old, his wife Olive was 53
& a native of Iowa. Their children were Walter Roscoe (21), Francis L. (19), Elmer B.
(18), Hannah (12), Arthur B. (l11), Marshal (9), Stanley (7), & Cora G. (4).
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1 Funiher Sescoptiun ol Impodiant Fadlures . . .
4o Tl The front entrance is single leaf & has an outstanding

example of a very ornate Eastlake screen. The door has an oval glass. The front (N) porch
features turned posts & spindle balustrade & dentil trim at the cornice. A small round
arched window with a heavy hood mold is east of the door, this is repeated in the north,
east & west gable peaks, which are imbricated with octagon shingles. The east gable ell
has a chamfered three sided bay with a large beveled glass leaded window. A similar win-
dow is on the front (N) gable peak. In the rear (S) is a 1% story gable roofed ell. A

(contl
The Hohnsons have lived here ten years. They purchased the house from
George Gregory. The previous & original owners were the Thompsons. The house is a fine
example of the Queef Anne style.

43 ristory «Ad Sigmihicance

4 Descnptian of Environment 3nd Quibuiidings .
The house sits at the corner of Jefferson & Thompson and

faces north. A well is at the SE corner & a garage is to the south.
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hip roofed enclosed porch room is on the south end. Cornerboards are plain.
Between the first & second level is a section of molded vertical board siding.

The only changes made by the Johnsons were papering, carpeting, & kitchen remodel-
ing.

A
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42 Funver Sescnption ol Impodtant Fudtuies qpo front facade has a screened porch which wraps around the
south & east sides of the front (8) ell. All windows on the exterior of the main block are
pedimented with pierced designs. Corner_ boards are molded with pierced cutwork tops. Pair-
ed brackets are at the eave, these are the cutwork scroll type. The frieze & eave are also
molded. The one story front porch is upheld by slim square posts with wide molded caps.
These rest on a clapboarded half wall. There are small cutwork brackets at the porch eave.
All the porches have brick foundations. The front windows at ground level are floor to
(cont)
The Paradys bought this structure five and a half vears ago from Kyle
He owned it for 25-30 years, they believe. Before this it belonged to Henry
Muhrer. He was a jeWeler & his son Harry also lived here. The house was built by Adam
Lang. He was a banker it is believed. 1In 1887 he had a saddle & harness business in Kahokal,

he alsc served on the board of directors for Kahoka College. In 1896 he was mayor ?f tg?
con

A garage is

49 hisioiy end Supmihcance

Peterson.

d Descuplion of Environmeént and Juibundings .
Descuvt 9% The house faces south onto Commercial Street.

to the northwest & a well is at the north_east corner of the house.
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42.

43.

ceiling type. Generally the other windows are 1/1 rectangular shaped double sash
at the first level & 1/1 square shaped double sash at the second level. Windows
are shuttered. The front entrance is a single leaf door with an etched glass tran-
som. A two story five sided polygonal bay is on the east side. 1In the rear (N) is
a two story addition of a shorter height than the main house. Each side of the ad-
dition has an enclosed pent porch room. Small brackets form the eave ornament for
the east porch.

The first floor has molded baseboards & window trim. There are six.paneled
pocket doors into the dining room. Other doors are six paneled & have transoms.
Woodwork is pine. The stairs are enclosed. The front room (parlor) had a fireplace
added at a later date which the Paradys have removed. The ceiling here features a
plaster medallion. Door knobs are brass with a bas-relief pattern. The upstairs
woodwork iscdifferent type. It is a coarser type of molding & has bull's eye corner
plates. Ceilings in the rear addition are lower (8') than in the main block. The
Paradys have added a bathroom & are redecorating.

town.

Henry Muhrer's sister, Sophia, married into the Lang family. She may have lived
here before Henry Muhrer bought the place or may have inherited it. Adam Lang had
the houses next door (west) and across the street (south) built for his sons, Karl
and Fred. The one to the west was built in 1909 and is Shingle style. The house tO
the south is Tudor style and built about the same time.

The Parady house is a good example of the Italianate influence found in small towns
before the turn-of-the-century.

The 1900 Census shows Adam Lang as a saddler who owned his residence free and
clear. He was 55, having been born in 1844 in Germany. Elizabeth was his wife,
she was a 49 year old native of Missouri. At home that year were Karl C. (17),
Fredrick (12), and Edwin (10). All children were born in Missouri. Adam lived
until 1923, Elizabeth died the same year. They are buried in the St. Paul
Lutheran Cemetery.
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¢2 Funier Cescnptiun ol impodiant Fudtures The south and east facades of this structure feature many
ornate details. The front single leaf entrance is sheltered by a curving porch with turned
posts, a spindle frieze and cutwork brackets at the sides of the posts. Scroll brackets
with pendants are at the eaves. The east ell is rounded with a turret roof. At second
level, a gable porch with a vergeboard, spindle frieze, turned posts and balusters, and
cutwork brackets gives access to another single leaf door. This is on the south ell, which
is chamfered. The gable peak here also has a vergeboard. On the west are two belcast

caps over narrow windows:; these are bracketed and have a pierced scalloped border (over)

43 nuaiory end Siymiicance Roy and Shirley Stice have lived here fourteen years. They bought

the house from Patsy McLaughlin who got it from the Dr. J. R. Bridges estate. Patsy
McLaughlin did not liwve here, 1In 1900, James R. Bridges was a boarder at the Charles

and Jennie Trump home. They had a dry goods business and four children. He was 30, single
and a physician.. By 1910, he had been married to Lenna nine years. She was 42, he was (Ove

447 Descrnpuian of Eawnonment and Qutduidings gy pouse faces south and sits at the northwest

corner of Exchange and Jefferson. A garage is on the rear.

45 Suuicys 04, INISIM3INION TR
Margaret Feller HPC
47. Qrganizatian  NEMO

Mrs. SFlce Reaional Planning Comm
Mr. Stice - 48. Date |49 RAevision Qate(s)

11/84

1900,1910 Census = Cemetery inscriptions of Clark County




42. at the eave. Larger sunburst brackets with pendants are at the chamfered bay.
Along the rear west gide is a truncated hip roofed porch which has been enclosed.
The rear center ell is 1% storys. The east roof slope has a pent dormer with
paired vents and sunbursts at the sides. Windows are generally 1/1 with trabeated
headers. Some are paired or in groups.of three, others are narrow. Cornerplates
have a star motif.

The interior follows a very ornate building pattern just as the exterior has
elaborate details. Upon entering the front door, the stair rises within the
curved east wing. The cherry wood stair has cutwork carving and massive

newel posts with finials. Ceilings are ten feet at first floor and nine feet
at the second level. Doorways are high with molded trim and bull's eye corner
plates. High molded baseboards are found through the house. Wood used, other
than the stair, is golden oak. The original hanging light fixtures remain
with glass shades and crystal prisms. Several single leaf pocket doors are
located throughout the house. Large battered columns rest upon built-in cabinets
with leaded glass at the dining room entrance. The cabinets are on both sides
of the opening. An original etched glass window with a bird and wheat motif

is on the single leaf entrance on the east. Framing is done in white pine.

The Stices added kitchen cabinets, insulation, electric outlets, replaced pipes
and rewired. Upstairs the master bedroom follows an octagonal plan and has

its own porch.

43. shown as 45, They had no children then. Bridges lived from 1863-1963, Lenna
lived from 1868-1947. Both are buried in Kahoka Cemetery. Bridges had a
separate office but often treated patients at his home.

Mr. Stice is a school teacher and Mrs. Stice has a cake decorating business.
They have three childrené¢ Greg (21), Gayla (15) and Faith Ann (12). The
house is an outstanding example of the ornate Queen Anne style.
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2. Funner Cescnphun ol Impodant Fudtures mhe gingle leaf door faces north & is at the east corner of

the front facade.
now a three part contemporary window.
heavy hood molds. These have also been altered.

with shutters have been installed.

corner.
the eaves.

A gable cap provides cover.

The front fenestration has been altered & is
Side facades have three gothic arched windows with
Tops are filled in & 1/1 smaller windows
A sguare integral bell tower rises at the northeast

It has 6/6 extremely elongated rectangular windows with cutwork scroll brackets at
The eaves have an applied circular motif.

43 rmisiory «nd Sigmiicancu
here on Union Street had a small but faithful congregation.
1966 it was in use by the Modern Woodmen of America.

County goes back to 1830 or 183l.
the county at St.

Francisville.

The Kahoka Methodist Protestant Church was built in 1900.
It disbanded circa 1930.
The Methodist Church history in Clark
The Methodists established the first church society in

The church
By

The church was divided over the slavery issue in the follow-

(cont)

44 Dascupuan O Enveeonment and Quibudings

railrocad track.

The building faces north & sits just south of the old
It looks out on Union Street.
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ing decades. Many Methodist Episcopals were pro-slavery & withdrew to join the M.E.
Church South. This weakened the Methodist Church greatly. The Kahoka Methodist
Church evolved from four sources: The Methodist Episcopal, the M.E. South, the
Kahoka Methodist Protestant, & the Ashton Methodist Churches.

The M.E. Church was organized in Kahoka in 1862. As they had no building,
they met in a school, then at the Congregational Church on the southeast corner of
Jefferson & Chestnut, & then in the Cumberland Presbyterian Church until they
built their own building. In 1883 they bought land from John M. Hiller. Work was
completed in 1888 at a cost of $2,500. By 1887 there were 50 members. The M.E.
Church South was organized in Kahoka in 1870. They used the Presbyterian Church
until a building was raised at the corner of Chestnut and Morgan where Sever Library
sits today. Ashton Church, first known as Mar's Hill Methodist Protestant Church,
was established in the late 1860's/early 1870's. It had one of the first Sunday
Schools started in the county. When Ashton was laid out, c. 1883, the church
became the Ashton Methodist Protestant Church.

In the early 1900's at the General Conference of Methodist W., the M.E. South
& Methodist Protestant Churches planned unification. The Kahoka M.P. & M.E.S.
churches were (¢. 1939) united & became the Kahoka Methodist Church. They used the
M.E. building at the SW corner of Jefferson & Chestnut for services. In 1943 that
church was enlarged & remodeled. Bishop Broomfield preached the dedication. The
Rev. J.R. Monroe was the first pastor under unification & during the remodeling from
1939-1950. In 1959 the Ashton Methodist Church merged with the Kahoka Methodist
Church. There were 345 members in 1966. Now all four early churches are combined
into one.

Mrs. Ragan has owned the building about fifteen years. After use by the Modern
Woodsmen, it was the Royal Neighbors Hall & Teen Town. Currently it houses a
beauty salon. The circle motif at the eaves & the tall tower with brackets are
unusual details in church architecture for this area.
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¢2. Funher Cescnphun ol impodam Features  The house features a tall octagonal tower which ends in a
flat top crowned with ornamental iron cresting. A porch wraps around the north ell on
both the north and east and is upheld by heavy turned posts with pierced brackets to the
sides. The porch also has scroll brackets and shelters a single leaf door with transom
on the northwest corner along with a similar door at the northeast corner. A gable peak
all protrudes on the east. It has a three sided polygonal bay with a paired elongated
rectangular shaped window on the front. The area below the window is imbricated with
diamond shaped shingles. Windows are generally 1/1 and rectangular shaped. (over)

19 nisiory «nd Swmhcance  The Fuges bought the house eight years ago from Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Kucher. Mr. Fuge owns the Hiller Insurance Agency and Mrs. Fuge is a first grade teacher.
They are from Springfield and Hillsboro respectively. They added the family room behind
the garage and have put in new wallboard,along with new paper, carpet and flooring. They
now have two children. The Kuchers bought the structure about twenty-one years ago. At
(over

44 Desciptan of Eaveonment 30y QuiduNdings  The main entrances face north. An outbuilding is to the

rear (west). The house sits at the northwest corner of the intersection of Clark and
Martin streets.
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42,

43,

Gable peaks are imbricated with half-cove shingles. East and west gable
peak windows are paired. Small pairs of 1/1 windows are located on each
face of the tower. A new addition is built onto the south and includes
a large double garage and large fireplace. The house has yellow metal
siding.

Interior woodwork is oak, it is molded and has flower motif corner plates.
The oak stair turns halfway up and is then enclosed. The four upstairs
bedrooms have been converted to three.

that time it was not in good condition. They added the furnace, sewer and

did electric wiring. They also built the double garage. Some small rooms

sat where the family room is now. The earliest known owners of the property were the
Miller: Belle Z. Miller built the house. The Snyder sisters from Ashton

bought the house after the Millers and intended to refurbish it but they

were elderly and didn't accomplish this. Harry Owen was a subseguent

owner and is thought to have rented it to Slim Morris for many years. He

was the last resident prior to the Kuchers. The land where the house sits

was deeded in 1891; the house was likely built soon after.

It is important as a fine example of the Queen Anne style.
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43 misioiy end Swndicaney yiork was completed on the Alexandria & Nebraska City Railroad in 1869
when its track covered about 27 miles according to the 1887 History.
county from Alexandria on the west & continued through Wayland, Clark City, Kahoka, Ashton,

& Luray.

It was with some reluctance that the people in the county accepted the coming of the

It traversed the

(cont)
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railroad. The main consideration was the financial burden involved. In other
counties, such as Knox, railroad bonds & railroad companies often led to financial
difficulties. Other feelings were that the railroad was too "new-fangled" & not
needed. It would change the business & employment patterns; teamers, drovers, haul-
ers, etc. would be put out of business. Apparently the Missouri, Iowa, & Nebraska
Railroad began operation in 1871, according to the 0ld Settlers Special Edition. A
celebration was held on July 4, 1876 to commemorate the line from Churchville
(Alexandria) to Kahoka. In 1888 the name was changed to the Keokuk & Western, under
new ownership. In 1900 the Chicago, Burlington, & Quincy Railroad leased the line.
By 1920 they had full rights & continued in business until 1970. At that point the
Burlington Northern Railroad took over. They ended operation of what was by then

a 74 mile strip(in 1982. The Kahoka depot's original building was consumed by fire
& the present depot building was built as a replacement in 1896. It had six trains
per day that year.

Currently the building stands vacant. It is important as a representative
example of the vernacular railroad depot which is dwindling in numbers & becoming
increasingly rare. The Clark County Historical Society hopes to preserve & restore
the building.
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The daily arrives in Kahoka at 9:41 a.m. enroute to
Centerville from Keokuk with passengers, mail and
express service for patrons along the line, April, 1952.
Pictured lefi (o right are: Earl Rowland; Floyd Wilson,

N

assistant div. passenger agent I; N. Lewis, brakeman
and baggage man with six years service; A. Jackson,
engineer with ten years service; Wm. DeVore, mail clerk
with 30 years; and Jap Miller, conductor with 48 years.

Gazette-Herald Pho!
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2 Fuice Soslnptun ol INpOHaN Fustuies  mpa o structure retains much of its original ornate appear-

ance & most of the appertenances are in surprisingly sound condition due in part to being
encased beneath layers of paint. The front facade (S) features a three sided polygonal bay
under a gable peak with half cove irmbrication. First level windows in this bay are extreme-
ly elongated. The south facing bay has the original stained glass window, one of three '
which followed a particular motif & were also located in the east & west bays. The one re- |

maining in the parlor depicts summer & shows an iris. The window trim is extremely ornate,
a course of "dentils" is uppermost. Corner plates have round flower motifs with five (cont)

€

43 masory end SWMICINCE Japes Robert Hume was born to Lynn Bank Hume (1817-1894) & Sarah Rosemon
(Hodges) Hume (1819-1898) in 1845. The family lived in Indiana at that time. In 1871 James;
R. married Emma R. Weber (1852-1900). He had been in Clark County twenty years by his i
marriage date. In his twenty-first year he followed the profession of teaching. James & |
Emma had three children: Roberta T., Cora C., & Vevie H. In 1879, Hume became the county |
{cont)f

:‘_ Cescpptun of Envigment 3nd Oulhullduh)s This structure faces south & sits at the northeast

corner of the intersection of Morgan & Court Streets. The yard is very spacious.
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petals & the trim is beaded. The corners of the bay have beaded cornerboards with
molded caps. These continue up to the roof. At second level, the bay has a paired
1/1 rectangular window flanked by a 1/1 window of more square shape. The diagonal
sides have massive paired brackets with cutwork. A belcast hood is over the paired
window & upheld by brackets similar to those on the diagonal walls, but smaller.

A square integral tower contains the main entrance, which is single leaf, & is on the
southeast corner of the front facade. The tower has a belcast mansard roof, decorative
"arrow" trim at the eaves, & paired brackets; it then rises to a clapboarded portion
pierced by triangular arched windows which had red stained glass. The east & west
gables follow the same pattern as the south gable. They have a three sided polygonal
bay which protrudes at first level & has a hip roof hood while the second level
window has a belcast hood, as on the front. The west bay has a single leaf entrance.
The rear section of the house has 1/l rectangular windows & an imbricated peak area.
A one story truncated hip roofed addition is at the rear. On its east side is a hip
roofed porch with its south end enclosed. The basement entrance is directly below
this. Windows on the north side of the addition have been altered. 1In general the
soffit area is finished with beaded wainscotting.

The interior of the house has outstanding architectural details. The entrance
hall has woodwork on a grand scale. Pocket doors give entrance into the parlor. Doors
have ornate molding & decorative pediments with circular & rectangular motifs. Trim
is beaded & corner plates have a "poppy" design. The stair comes down into the en-
trance hall & consists of a massive newel post with a round ball on top. Balusters
are square & round turned. The stair is built of butternut. The east & west rooms
with the polygonal bays have beveled, etched glass in the windows & beveled sashes.

Door knobs & hinges have ornate bas-relief. Hinges are of cutwork brass. The center
north corner of these two rooms has diagonal fireplaces. The fireplace in the parlor
is also set diagonally, green ceramic tile surrounds the opening which is topped by an
extremely ornate Eastlake style mantel. The fireplace in the west room has been
altered to a modern appearance while the fireplace in the east room has the top
decorative portion removed but retains the ceramic tiles. The rear room is the

former dining room & the rear addition houses a kitchen. Back stairs are built in
here & the present owners plan to replace these. The kitchen ceiling has been lowered.
A bath is in the northwest corner. The two baths were added in 1949 & 1953.

Upstairs, the woodwork shows a different motif. Corner plates have a circular &
diagonal design cut into the wood. Baseboards are about 12" high & some floors are of
wide plank. Some alterations have been made. A large closet extends across the
inside diagonal wall of the south bedroom. Another large closet room has been designed
into the original floorplan, next to the bath at the northwest corner.

The owners plan to turn the two west bedrooms into a library. Access to the
tower is found over the main stairs. Philadelphia gutters were built into the house's
roof. These have been removed. Next summer the restorazion work will continue & in-
clude a new roof & foundation. Plans also include rebuilding the porch to its original
appearance & replacing vergeboards.
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recorder & served in that capacity for eight years. 1879 also marked the year he
had this house built. J.R. Hume joined the staff of the Kahoka Savings Bank &
later became the president. In the 1890's he apparently sold off shares of some
of his property in order to keep the bank solvent. After Emma's death, he married
Litha Page in 1901. Hume died in 1913. Litha received the property & was also
proprietor of a dress shop in Kahoka. Some records say she had ownership of the
house in 1909. Isabelle D. McKee owned the house in 1916. The next owners were
James H. & Alice Talbott in 1922, He purchased the property for $5,000. James
Homer Talbott was born in 1867 in Anson, Missouri to John P. & Sarah V. Talbott.

In 1885 & 1886 he taught at Hogan School in Folker Township. During 1887-1890

he attended Lewis College in Glasgow, Missouri, then he returned to teach at Hogan.
In 1888 he married Allie Mae House & the following year they had a daughter, Clara
Ethel Talbott. Mr. Talbott went to Iowa Wesleyan University at Mt. Pleasant, Iowa
in 1890 & studied law. By 1891 he was reading law at Keokuk, Iowa. He returned
to Missouri in 1892 to teach at Canaan, He entered journalism by
printing "The Regulator" at Sherman, Missouri & then "The Register" at Luray (1896).
During this time he taught & published. In 1897 he became the principal at Revere,
his wife taught the primary grades. He printed "The Revere Current" in 1898.

Talboti returned to his pursuit of a law career & in 1901 received his law
degree at Northern Illinois College of Law. IHe also cot his B.O. in 1902 at Dixon
College of Oratory & then went to Northern Indiana Law School at Valparaiso, Indiana
where he graduated in 1903 with his second L.L.B. Next he was admitted to practice
law, to the Supreme Court of the State of Indiana, & to the U.S. Circuit Court.

By 1904, he was back in Missouri serving as a teacher & the principal at Alexandria
where he published the "Delta Sun" from 1905-1906. Between 1906-1910 he was in
Kahoka, then he published "The Wayland News" while practicing law in Kahoka. 1In
1910 he published "The I'ree Press" in Kahoka & in 1912 Talbott became the Clark
County Prosecuting Attorney. He was appointed to this position by the governor.
Subsequently he was elected for five 2-year terms (through 1920). He had become
part of the Missouri Supreme Court in 1919 & remained in the area for the next
twenty-five years. 1In 1946 he sold "The Free Press". Talbott was one of the most
colorful characters in Clark County's history. He was renowned for his oratory
ability. 1In 1932 he took the Kansas bar exams. He sold the house in 1950 & moved
to Coffeyville, Kansas. But by 1954 he, his wife Alice, their daughter Clara, &
her husband John B. Gutting had come back to Kahoka. "Allie" died in 1958 at age
89. James Talbott lived with his daughter Clara. He took a walk from Kahoka to
Wayland to celebrate his ninetieth birthday & enjoyed refusing lifts. He died in
1962 at age 95. Ownership was listed under Mrs. John 3. Gutting in 1931 & then back
under James H. & Alice Talbott in 1932, In 1950 A.J. & Katherine Tucker purchased
the place for $6,250. They leased it to Webb's Nursing Home. It was sold to
George & Cavetta Brown in 1952 & to Gene Gutting in 1955.
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Recently William J. & Ellen Johnston bought the house. William was born in
the area & lived here until he was fifteen, when he moved to Claifornia. He is
now a semi-retired hotel executive, was on television for a few years & worked
at Universal Studios. Ellen is an artist & interior designer. They have a home
in Sacramento, California & own a ranch outside Laramie, Wyoming. The house
was vacant when they took possession. Mr. & Mrs., Johnston are currently in the
process of restoring the home & plan to return it to its original condition.

Significance of this house lies in its architectural style which is out-
standing for the area & fortunately remains very little changed except for the re-
moval of the porch which the owners plan to reconstruct.
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¢2. Funier Cescnpton ul Impontant Fustures The front facade (north) has a spacious wrap around porch

with triple round posts framing the entrance.
rises above & is ornamented with a scroll applique.

These rest on molded bases; a pediment
The single leaf front entrance sits on

the east end of the front facade under an imbricated gable peak with a row of stubby brack-

ets.

tils.
gable peak areas are small.
facade.

A rectangular triple window is in the gable peak area which is also graced with den-
Windows are generally 1/1 & rectangular shaped. Some are paired and others in the
A five sided polygonal tower is on the west end of the front

It ig imbricated near the top level and has scroll ornamentation framed by (cont)
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L

wmhicance mhe house is an outstanding example of the Queen Anne style.
heavily ornamented & also an extremely large structure compared to most in Kahoka.

the house is the property of the Leland Schuster family.

It is
Currently

44

intersection of Jefferson & Court in Kahoka.

alley is to the rear. The well is at the south as is the basement entrance.

Cescnption of Envigament 3nd Quibuiidings

The house sits on the corner lot, on the southeast, at the
The yvard is spacious & an

It faces north.

i
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molded -bands located beneath the upper small 1/1 square windows. A ball topped
finial crowns the tower. The cornice is molded. The main block of the house has

a truncated hip roof with a wooden balustrade type decor, including dentils. The
east & west sides of the house both feature chamfered bays with gable peaks. At the
roof level are large brackets with a feather motif. Peak areas are imbricated & have
dentils. The rear (S) has a central, shallow gable ell with a corbeled chimney, a
heavily molded cornice & an imbricated peak. A smaller gable ell is on the southwest
corner, along with a hip roofed dormer. At the extreme south end is a two story ell

with a pent roof & an enclosed porch room. The exposed basement has 2 light rectangu-
lar shaped windows.
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42 Funer Cescrptwn ol Important Fastures A pent porch extends along the front facade & is upheld by
battered posts grouped in threes at the porch corners. These rest upon a clapboarded half
wall. A single leaf door is centrally located on the front (S); sidelights & transom have
been covered. Windows are 6/6 square shaped double hung sash. Trim is plain. The east &
west gable ends. have molded eaves, returns & a raking cornice. Cornerboards are capped. At’
the rear is a one story gable roofed addition that includes a family room with fireplace &
utility room. The inside has been updated on the wall & floor surfaces.

LA

43 rmoioiy and Sypmcance The Neves got the property from Mable Montgomery in 1964. It had been
vacant less than a year at that time. The Neves have two sons.

John W. Montgomexy is listed as the owner of this property in 1878. He was one of Clark
County's most prominent citizens according to the 1887 History. He was born in 1824 near
Louisville, Kentucky & in 1853 married Mary S. Dicken. They came to Missouri, to Clark

(cont
The house sits back from highway EE east of Kahoka. It
faces south. Two outbuildings are to the rear. Previously a large barn was in the back.
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County circa 1869 & settled here. Montgomery acquired large real estate interests.
He was also involved in farming & stock raising. Together he & his wife had ten child-
ren. Among these were Theodore I. (who put up the Montgomery Opera House) and
Clifford, who inherited this place upon his father's death, according to Mack
Montgomery. Montgomery died in 1893. By 1896 Miss Ettie Montgomery is shown as

the owner of this property although apparently it went to Clifford. Of John's large
holdings, 80 acres went to each child at his death and this portion went to Clifford

& his wife Mabel. They had no children. Mrs. Mary S. Montgomery is shown as owner
of the adjacent land/house to the east. By 1915 E.F. Becker is shown as the owner of
this property according to the Atlas of that year but is seems this information is in-
correct & that the property remained in the Montgomery family until it was purchased
by the Neves. Clifford Montgomery was Mack Montgomery's Uncle. Currently Mack
Montgomery is 77 & he states Clifford got the farm before he was boxn.

The property is significant both for its long association with the prominent
Montgomery family & as a good example of an early I-house.







LURAY

The settlement here dates to 1835 when the Wilson, Price, & Hanna families
arrived from Kentucky. Dr. Robert Stark & George Combs laid out Luray in 1837
to contain a public square and twenty-nine blocks of four Tots each. George
Combs gave the Tand. Michael Miller Taid out the Miller Addition.

In October 1871 Mr. & Mrs. James W. Summers gave the Tland for Eldorado &
surveyved it. The town went by the name Jimtown after Mr. Summers. A depot
was built & nearby were stockyards, a grain elevator, an ice house, the Herrig
restaurant, a pickle house, & a big windmill. Eldorado was on the east edge
of Luray & has been absorbed by Luray. The Eldorado cemetery in on the east
edge of town. Jacob Tinsman built a large barn c. 1842 & let all denominations
use this for church services. In 1866 the Baptists built a church & in 1887
the Methodists also had one. The first store was built & operated by Smith
Tinsley between 1834 & 1837. By 1887, Luray was a flourishing town with the
George Schneider drugstore, the Bradley jewelry store, and four general stores,
also a blacksmith shop, a barbershop, a coopers shop, a wagon shop, a post
office, a hotel, a livery stable, a feed store & -a funeral parlor. In 1863
David McKee reorganized the Anti-Horsethief Association here. A stagecoach
1ine operated throuagh Luray on the old trail from the Mississippi River to
Bloomfield, Iowa. Luray's first school was a subscription school that cost $1
per month. A frame schoolhouse was built later & in use until 1916.




An elementary & high school were built in 1915. Luray also had four lodges &
the Harkness Tlivery stable & store. That family also operated an hotel (c. 1905).
Mr. Swisher also had a hotel & 1ivery barn, in addition there was the Coffrin
Tivery barn & the Dennison hotel & Tivery. Will Randle conducted the funeral
parlor. Later Kirchner & the Guttinags had funeral parlors. An epidemic of
cholera hit in 1868; Tom Barnes was thouaht to have succombed & was nearly
buried alive. Seaver's Mill existed here in Luray. Mr. Shaw -had built a
grist & sawmill here in 1850. The town had a nursery & a greenhouse at some

point in time. The first rural mail route started in 1903. Luray's population
is 175.
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<2 Fudier Sesciwtion ol impodam Fedtuies mhe front facade is at the west gable end. Its most promi-

nent features are a three part window with a trabeated header & a large five part fan tran-

som. Narrow 1/1 windows are to either side. Colored glass composes the top portion of
the church's windows. A square bell tower is at the southwest corner. It has a double
leaf entrance with transom reached by a flight of concrete steps. Doors have six panels.
The open air belfry retains its bell & supports the flat topped roof on square posts, the

balustrade also has small square posts. The basement is raised & has rectangular two light

windows. The main structure has a continuous sill course & narrow clapboarding (cont)

<€

43 risiory «0d Swpniicance T 1887, the Methodist Protestant congregation of the area built a wooden

structure for their church. The building was dedicated in 1887. John Sexsmith was the
reverend. It is believed that church was located somewhere close to the present Baptist
Church as both the Methodist & Baptist Church were mentioned as located by the large frame
school house. . The present building with its bungaloid detailing probably dates from the

early 1900Q's. It is very significant as representative of the bungaloid style, which (cont;

<4 Descupton of Envionment 3nd Quiduidings The church faces west & Sits in Che east end of ILuray, one
block east of County Road AA. The school is across the street to the north.

49 Suuices ol Inlgnmanon . L. . 46, Pﬂ;uﬂlu(l oy
The 01d Settlers Special Edition of the Media, 9/14/83 ,
1887 History Margaret Feller HPC

47. Organizanian NEMO
Regional Planning comm

}

- 48. Date [49 Revision Dateqs)

11/84
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43,

between the sill course & window headers. This narrow clapboard provides a visual
contrast between the upper & lower portions of the building. The cornerboards &
cornice are plain. Rafters are exposed at the roof & have knee braces at the gable
ends. The north wall has a small three sided polygonal bay; a paired window is to
its west & a narrow window is to its east. At the rear (E) is a one story gable
roofed addition. A small gable roofed addition is built onto the south wall to
give access to the basement. Another entrance similar to this but with a hip roof
is added to the rear of the bell tower.

is not often found in religious structures.
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MARYSVILLE

Marysville virtually no Tonger exists but it was situated in Section
31 of Des Moines Township about two miles up river from St. Francisville.
The location was in a little valley surrounded by steep cliffs on the bank
of the Des Moines River. William R. Harrison & Charles Wood built the
first cabin & the trading post; they arrived in 1822 and were employed by
the American Fur Company. Trading was carried on with the Sac & Fox
Indians but at some point the men Teft & did not return until 1830. At
that point, Harrison made Marysville his permanent home. The settlement
was called Marysville since at least five of the women there were named
Mary. German settlers were predominate in Marysville's early days. The
town had a steam powered sawmill which produced lumber for river barges.
There was also a cooper shop. Near a natural rock bridge was a church &
a school. Irish settlers arrived & worked the nearby stone quarry. Farm-
land here was fertile & the abundant timber was white oak. In the Tate
1800's Noah Bailey owned much of the Tand north of Marysville. Another
sawnill & a ferry operated at the mouth of the Big Branch. (This was the
Howard Bogguss farm in 1983.) A small cemetery was located north of the
first trading post; this is where Harrison & his family were buried. A "new"
school was built in 1910. In 1983 the town had only the school, two log
cabins, & Ralph LeMaster's home left.
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Funner Cescnptun ol important Fustuied Half dovetail notching locks the 13 courses of hewn logs to-
gether to form a 1 room, 1% story structure. It had a gable roof with vertical boards fill-
ing the gable ends. Windows in the loft area are only on these ends & are small half light
openings. The 1lst story windows are squarish, doublehung, & 6/6. There is a primary single
leaf entrance, centrally located on the E facade. Across the rear facade is a 1 story pent
lean-to addition of frame construction. It is unclear what the original heat source would
have been. Also it is noted that the logs are an odd variety of sizes & shapes.

4]

risigry ood Sgmiticance The LeMaster family has a long history in this area. 1In 1870 George
LeMasters was a thirty-eight year old farmer who had come here from Pennsylvania. His net
worth was $200 that. year which was the equivalent of about $2,000 today. In 1851 he had
married Mary C. Bouge. By 1870 she was thirty-six; her home state was Indiana. That year

they had Louisa (17 & born in Iowa), Emily (14), Frank (12), George (8), Harriett (4), & Ida
B. (2) under their rxoof. All but the first child were born in Missouri which would (cont)

44

4o

Teschipton A Envioament and Qutbuidings © 1 a2 . . . ] i
wes 1% The building is now associated with a newer residence to its

S. Several outbuildings are to the W. The cabin faces E & sits in a low lying area less
than 1/2 mile W of the Des Moines River, & less than 1/8 mile W of the former community of
Marysville. )

Souices 0f.1n10Na0n 46, Prepasned oy Linda Harper
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Clark County Marriage Records Reqional Plannirg Come
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date their arrival here to around 1856. Property here went to the son, Frank, who

was born in 1859. By 1900 he owned this free & clear. 1In 1885 he had married Caldona
Harrison (born in 1865) and their children by 1900 were Robert (15), Mary (13),

Annie (or Addie, aged 11), Harvey (or Harlan, aged 3), and Garland (l). Also in the
household was Catherine, a 62 year old widow. This may have been Mary C., George
LeMaster's wife, as often ages reported were off by a couple years. Three more child-
ren were born to Frank & Caldona by 1910. Alfred was 8 that year, Ralph was 5, &
Alvin was 5 months old. This was the "old homeplace” & the LeMaster children grew

up here. Ralferd LeMaster (thought to be Ralph) married Francis Wilkens in 1923.

Mr. & Mrs. Ralph LeMaster purchased this property about 1949 from Ralph's parents.
Ralph's dad, Frank, worked at the sawmill at the mouth of Big Branch (where the Howard
Bogguss farm was in 1983). This was the second sawmill built in Marysville. LeMaster
also hauled lumber across the river by ferry to Sand Prairie. This house sat near

the boundaries of the former town of Marysville. It has recently been torn down.
Ralph LeMaster owned this until his death in 1972, the property now belongs to his
widow.

The structure was significant because of its log construction and early date of
construction.













MEDILL

Medill sits in Sections 15 & 16 of Lincoln township. The Atchison, Topeka,

& Santa Fe runs just west of the community which consists of about nine blocks
and about sixty buildinas today. In 1887 the Chicago, Santa Fe, & California
Railway was under construction and it crossed the Keokuk & Western line in
Section 15. Medill was to be a station on the Chicago, Santa Fe, & California
Railway and most of its development probably resulted from its connection with
the railroad. The location had only a few structures in 1878, most of its
growth came after 1887.
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2. Funner Cascnptiun ol Imponiant Fadtures nygual grouped windows with triangular transoms highlight
this structure. A square bell tower with a crenelated top also serves as the entry vesti-
bule. The entrance is single leaf with a triangular transom with diamond panes. The north
gable peak has a triple window with a three part triangular transom. Above this is a round
light filled with tracery. It has heavy molding & is dated "1889". West facade windows
are 1/1, rectangular shaped & pedimented. Cornerboards are capped, the frieze is molded
and the cornice rakes on the gable ends. A small ell protrudes to the east. Its windows
are small. 171, & trabeated This containsg the altar and may be an addition. At (cont)

43 Pistory oad Swmhicdnct  mhe chyrch is in use, sometimes for revivals. History of the congrega-
tion is scarce. It came into the Wyaconda Baptist Association in 1916 but last reported
to the Association 4n 1923. Pastors included L.P. Smith, J.E. Bane, Cecil Brimer, & C.C.
Riley.

sphan of Envionmeént and Quitbuiding . . : ; -
4 Descpnon Y YiouNanYS he church sits just south of highway 136.as it continues

toward Kahoka & divides thetown of Medill in half. The structure faces north. A cemetery
is across town on the northeast side.

1. Inlgamanion .
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History of Clark County Churches, Clark County Historical Society Margaret Keller HPC
(article by Mrs. Dale Hagerman)
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Reagional Planning Comm

-~ 48. Date 49 Rewvision Dale(s)

10/84




42.

any rate, windows are of four different types, which seems to indicate different
rhases of building or alterations. The basement is raised & it replaces the
original foundation. It has exposed rectangular windows. The entry has new
paneling while the main body of the church has beaded wainscotting with molding.

Pews are rounded.







NEEPER

Shilo Church was the first structure to be built here in 1879. 011ie
Pricket had a grocery, Louis Diehl had a blacksmith shop, and John Hodges
& his associates ran another blacksmith shop & a grist mill. By the early
1900's the settlement had grown to include another store, a barrel hoop
factory, a post office, & a telephone exchange. John Pricket started a
store north of the first store and included patent medicines & knickknacks
in his stock. This is where the post office was located. His son, Wilford,
subsequently ran the business; he installed the telephone switchboard which
had a Tine from Kahoka to Neeper to Williamstown. In 1908 Ed Kapfer purchased
the store. Several others ran it until 1950, it is extant. In 1904 the
post office was removed from Neeper. The barrel hoop factory was located by
Lipp's blacksmith shop. It had its main operation in the springtime when
hickory wood was available insect-free. The church still stands & has ser-
vices today. Neeper is in Section 21 of Union Township and has seven buildings
in the immediate vicinity.
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F ' o - i 3 1 1 i
2. Funtier Zescnption of important Fedtures o £ ont facade (E) is pierced by two single leaf doors

with two light transoms. Exterior door & window headers are pedimented. Windows follow a
4/4 attenuated rectangular pattern. Also evident are capped cornerboards & a plain raking
cornice. The altar is situated at the west end. Interior millwork appears to be pine & is
done in large Grecian ear design, similar to the Clark County Courthouse millwork.

<

43 nustory end SmeANCE anoording to the 0ld Settler's Edition, this structure was the first
building erected in Neeper. It was raised in 1879 by the Prickets, Brotherton, & Hodges.

It saw Neeper through the beginning of its existence, its heyday, & its present situation of
a few buildings. It is significant for its long & continuous role in the religious & com-
munity life of Neeper & as a good example of a rural vernacular church from the late 1870's.

: 1 Envitonment 3 . .
44 Oesciplion of Envonment 3nd QuidUIGNYS o chyrch sits in the southwest part of Neeper and faces

east. The cemetery extends to the west & north. County Road Dpasses just south of the -
church. A fence crosses the east side of the yard. An outbuilding is to the rear.
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2 Funner Sescnption ol imporant Fustules mpo 131ding has a boomtown front facade. Construction is in
concrete; at the cornice paired brackets provide visual interest. A pent porch of corrugat-
ed metal shelters the double leaf door with a two light transom. Large rectangular store-
front windows are to either side. A gable roofed frame addition extends across the rear
facade. Pilasters in the front are also concrete.

43 nusiory end Swmlednce  p prane store sat on this location originally. It was run by the
Prickett Brothers but burned. They had another store (run by Mary Prickett) across from the
church but it burned~also, about 1920. Glen Bourgeois owned the present structure (U-11).
The last merchant in business here was Lee Shoup. He first opened in November 1941, but due
to Pearl Harbor & wartime was closed by 1942. He reopened in 1945. They had a general line

- {cont)
cnphian ot Envaunment and Quibunigin . .
44 Descuphian YIOUHENYS e store faces south & sits in Neeper on the NW
side of County Road D. '
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Mr. Lee Shoup _ M {
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of groceries & feed and boucht produce, cream, eggs, chickens, & rabbits. Very few
drv aoods were carried. Lee Shoup closed his store in November 1950. It was later
used as a dwelling & for storage. Ed Kapfer was an owner prior to Bourgeois? Follow-
ing occupants/owners of the store were Wallace, Elmer Moore, George Koeber, &

Houseman (who probably bought out Kapfer). A blacksmith shop was at the foot of the
hill. Thetelephone office "Neeper Switchboard" is still standing, one room was used
as a dwelling. The exchange was owned by local shareholders who paid low dues about
every three months in return for service. They also made repairs & did upkeep. The
Prickett brothers had the post office in the early store. They had arrived from
Clairmont County, Ohio in 1863 & 1867. The building (U-11) is unusual with its con-
crete construction & this particular manifestation of the cornice area. It is also
important for its long role in the business life of the Neeper community.

XIt became the property of the Farmers Cooperative. Glen Bourgeois currently runs
a store in Wvaconda.







PEAKESVILLE

This small settlement is in Section 20 in Sweet Home Township. There
are twelve structures in the close vicinity today. Peakesville was laid out
in 1852 by Mrs. Mary E. Peake, according to the 1887 History. It contained
nine blocks and became a flourishing trading post. Two general stores, three
blacksmith shops, a post office and two churches were there by 1887. Samuel
Sellers erected his large store building in Peakesville in 1899. The town's

name is sometimes spelled Peakeville, with no "s".
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42 Funner Tescnptin ol IMPGHant Fadturs mpe  £ront facade (N) of this structure has a single leaf en-
trance and a large rectangular window with a transom situated under the porch. This hip
roofed porch curves around to the east facade where it shelters another single leaf door &
large rectangular window with a transom. The porch is upheld by Doric columns & has a wide
plain entablature. A circular window & a paired rectangular window with beaded diamond paneﬁ
are on the lower level of the gable facade (N). Above the paired window is a 1/1 rectangu-

lar shaped window. These all have stone lintels & sills. In the gable peak is a round
attic window. Wide molded returns are here; small scalloped vergeboards are just above (cont

43 rmisioiy e0d Sspmhicance b po Wilson built this structure sometime between 1911 & 1915. The 1900
census shows Daniel as a 24 year old farmer who owned his property. He was born in 1876
(died 1964). Pearl Mae was his 21 year old wife (died 1948) & they had one daughter, Anna,
aged one by 1900. Evidently this young family was quite prosperous. Wilson owned 215.8

acres in 1930. By 1932 Dan Thompson had purchased the place. He married Dorothea Fine in
(cont)

The house faces north & sits just south of county road C.
It is located just outside of the original limits of the Village of Peaksville.
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the returns. There are identical gable peaks on the east and west facades. The

west facade has two windows at each level, but the upper ones are not centered.

These are all 1/1 & rectangular shaped. An addition is on the south. It is of

frame construction & covered in clapboard. A chimney of molded concrete block rises on
the east side of the roof. The exterior of the house remains in much the same condi-
tion that it was in when built. The interior has oak millwork.

1928. They had three children: Dan Jr., Paul, & John. The farm was first a dairy &
then a general & beef farming operation.

The house is important as a fine example of the use of molded concrete block
construction. .

RESIDENCE OF D. T. WILSO
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(2 Funnes Cesinptin ol impcriant Fadlures  mhe front (E) facade is graced with a two story orenelated

bell tower. Louvered vents have triangular shaped tops. The double leaf entry here has
four panels on each side & a triangular shaped transom of 3 lights. The church sits upon a
raised concrete basement with paired 1/1 square shaped windows which extend around the
building. The front gable facade exhibits a large window composed of a set of four attenu-
ated 1/1 rectangular shaped windows surmounted by a triangular transom of three parts, each

with 3-4 lights. Rafters are exposed in the eaves & a small covered attic vent is located
at the gable peak. It also has a triangular shaped top. The triangular motif is (cont)

13 noiciy end Sgmibicance The history of thePeaksville Christian Church dates back to the mid 1850'g
Earliest records show a meeting at "Brother Christy's" house to elect trustees. Present
were Harvey, Christw, Stevens, Calvert, Stauffer, & Burks. These people were in charge of
erecting a church building. Apparently early meetings were Held in Highland School. Money
was raised for a brick church & the deed for the ground was procured in 1857. The church

(cont)
The church faces east & sits near the middle of PeaksvilleT
Peaksville cemetery is 1/2 mile to the northwest.
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repeated through the architecture. At the northeast corner of this front facade

is another entry vestibule. This has a pent roof & a double leaf door similar to the
one at the southeast corner. A gabled ell extends to the north & has a facade which
matches the other gable ends. Side windows an this ell & on the main block of the
church are a paired 1/1 attenuated rectangular type with heavy molding.

A small gable roofed room is on the south facade of the church. The front has
been covered with asbestos shingles but the side walls retain the original clapboard.

was built on this site. It measured 32' x 48', pews were hand-made, & there was no
steeple or pulpit. The pews had no backs & a table was used for the pulpit. John
Brinkerhoff was minister in 1860 & at other times itinerant ministers preached here.
In 1870 the structure was damaged beyond repair by a tornado. Since several years
prior to this the church had been out of use due to lack of interest.

By the late 1870's the community resolved to put up a new church. There were
16 charter members: William Christy & wife, David Miller & wife, Johnson Webster &
wife, Charles Lambert & wife, David Hindron & wife, Thomas J. Calvert & wife, Mrs.
Zack Boyd, & William Enoch. Soon there were 79 members. ‘A frame church was built
in the late 1870's. Materials were hauled in from Alexandria by wagon. Two doors
opened to the east. The men sat on the south side, a low partition divided the pews
from the women & children on the north. There were three large clear glass windows
with round arched tops. The bell in the belfry could be heard for several miles.
A steeple graced the top. Two stoves served the church at this time. Disagreement
over the purchase of an organ caused many members to leave & never return. Rev. Hickman
was the first to preach in this building and for the first year he received no salary.
Many other ministers followed: quite a few were students in training from Culver-
Stockton College. The church was the center of the community & many church suppers,
revivals, & programs were held.

In 1907 the first county convention of Christian Churches was held here. The
Des Moines River was used for baptisms.

In 1922 the second church was hit by lightening & was completely destroyed.
Church & Sunday school was held at the Methodist Church in Revere until the present
structure was completed & dedicated in 1923. It was built at a cost of $10,000. 1In
August 1956 the church celebrated its 100th anniversary. It then had .80 members with
19 of them members of over fifty years.

The church is significant both for its long history & role in community religious
life and for its fine vernacular style.
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42, Funoer Zescptiun ol Impodiant Fedtures  The front facade follows a typical "A" plan. The two single
leaf doors are slightly off center and flanked by 6/6 square shaped windows. The small pent
rorch has square posts. The north gable end window has a wide shape which may represent an
alteration from the original facade. The front two rooms are log & the house is reputedly
the oldest in town. The west side has a gable roofed addition with a pent room on the south.
The addition has 2/2 rectangular shaped windows.

43 rusioty «0d Sigmiicance

This property once belonged to Squire Duty. He is thought to have built
the house, this may have been the Isreal Duty mentioned in SH-11l. In 1878 Squire Duty is
listed as the owner, “Daniel Kleine & Jesse Kleine are shown as owners in 1896 & 1915. Jesse
& Clara Kleine lived here c¢irca 1905, Clara's parents were of German descent. Their son

Daniel was born in the house.* His father was in the revolutionary war, had gone west to
(cont)

The structure faces east onto its fenced yard. Outbuild- ‘
ings are to the NW. The site is at the northeast corner of Peaksville. '
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raise tobacco, & settled north of Peaksville. Daniel had left the area, he came

back to visit & married the blacksmith's daughter. Justice M. West was the father

of Helen West, who became Daniel's wife. At some point Mr. & Mrs. Arnold lived here.
Burly Mae Hull has owned the house 20-30 years & is 88 years old. The house is signi-
ficant for the fact that the front two rooms have log construction, it is believed

to be the oldest house in Peaksville.
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ST. FRANCISVILLE

St. Francisville was the first permanent white settlement in Clark County.
The original settlers were Jacob & Elizabeth WEaver and their five children and
a nerson by the name of Sackett. They settled near the present town in 1829.
Jeremiah Wayland, George Haywood, & Samuel Bartlett came here in November 1829.
In 1832 the Black Hawk War broke out and a company of the Missouri Militia was
sent to St. Francisville to establish a small fort to afford the settlers pro-
tection from the Indians. Fort Pike was built of upright logs & had two levels
with the upper one protruding.

The original town was laid out in 1834 by Francis Church & William Clark
to contain a public sauare & sixteen blocks. Church made additions in 1835 &
1836. Wayland added his in 1837 & 1848. John Stakes opened the first store
here in 1833. 1In 1835 Clark County's first post office was established with
J.F. Wayland as postmaster. The town arew quickly & had several stores, a
shoemaker, a mill, a distillery, pork packing business, & was a main shipping
point for the steamboats that plied the Des Moines River. Today it retains the
Bantist & the Methodist church along with the school, & several businesses &
homes. It is situated in Sections 4 & 9 of Des Moines Township.



St. Francisville

1§78 Atlag
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2 Fynner Cascnption ol imporaie Fastures The front facade has doors of the single leaf variety at
either end & a window in the center. This is the reverse of the usual pattern. Unexpected-
ly, there are no sidelights at the doors, but there is a multi-light transom on the west
door. A pent porch over_hangs the entire lst level on the front. It has turned Eastlake
type posts. . Windows have the rare 9/6 (9 panes over 6 panes) lighting pattern which indi-
cates the structure was built very early. These are on the front (S) & side (east). The
east facade has a massive brick chimney which served a fireplace with a federal mantle
(extant). Returns grace the gable ends. The house has a wide plain cornice & corner- (cont{)
13 hisiory o0d Sigmieance This structure is known as the "0ld Jordan Inn". It was the stage stop
when Garrette Jordan drove the state from Palmyra to Brookfield. In the 1860 census he is
shown as a fifty yeax old farmer from Kentucky with a net worth of $2,500. His wife Eliza
was forty-six and also from Kentucky. At home were Julia (20), Sarah (18), Mary (16), Alice
(14), James (15), & Charles (9). All were born in Missouri. Judging from the eldestchild's

(cont
This house faces south & is located in the north part of
St. Francisville. The Des Moines River flows just east of the house.
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boards. On the west gable end the window has been closed. A two story pent
addition is built onto the rear. This obscures any openings. There also is a one
story pent addition added (N) to the two story addition. Heavy timber construction
is evident where the clapboarding is gone. Field stone comprises the foundation.

birthdate, the Jordans were in Missouri by at least 1840. They must have done very
well with the inn & stagecoach business. By 1860 Garrett is shown as the owner of
15 slaves. 1In 1872 he was elected the supervisor of Des Moines Township.

Garrette had his coach, known as "The 0l1d Des Moines Mail Coach', built in 1840
at Palmyra for $600. It carried six passengers & was pulled by four to six horses,
depending on the weather & the horses. He delivered the mail in addition to passen-
gers. One of the stations where the horses were changed was.the J.L. McKee barn.
Horses were changed several times per trip. Garrette drove the stagecoach many years.
The coach has been restored & is in the Missouri State Capitol. The date Garrette
died is not known but his wife lived from 1824 to 1892 and is buried in Wolfe Cemetery.

Silas & Rhoda Ann Keith lived in the Jordan Inn for many vears. Silas married
Rhoda Ann Grubb in 1856 in Ohio & soon afterwards came to Clark County. At first
they lived in a log cabin west of St. Francisville near Weaver's Branch on property
owned by D.C. Sickels. In the 1870 census Silas is shown as a 41 year old laborer
from Pennsylvania with a net worth of $200. Rhoda, of Ohio, was 36. They had five
children then: William (12), John E. (10), Marrietta (7), Thomas (4), & Elsa (4
months). Another child was born at some point. Silas died in 1903 & Rhoda died in
1914. They are buried in Sand Cemeterv. Their son Thomas G.
next lived in the house for many years. He was borm in 1866. The 1900 census
portrays him as a groceryman who owned his property free & clear. His wife was
Susan I. who was probably.a new bride judging from her age of seventeen. By 1910
Ana C. (2) is shown in their family. Another child, Vera, lived only from 1901-1905.
Thomas then listed his occupation as "truck farmer". He died in 1950 & Susie died in
1967. They are alsc buried in Sand Cemetery. The house has been vacant about
fifteen years or since Susie Keith's death.

A subsequent owner was Milton Jutte. Upon his death the property went to his
heirs & is currently owned by Bill Jutte.

This structure is extremely significant. It shows a high degree of sophistica-
tion for its early construction date. It is very unusual because of its use of the
early, rarely found, 9/6 window lighting (pane) pattern.
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2 Funher Tescnptiun ol importam Fualutes mhe front facade (N) has been altered to include an enclosed
pent roofed porch with a single leaf centrally located door. Two small paired windows are
to either side. This is covered with modern wide siding. The main block of the house is
brick. Windows are 1/1 & very elongated with stone lintels (lst floor) & sills. On the
north facade the door had a transom, now closed. This door is centered with a window to
either side. There is a wide plain cornice. To the south is a small clapboarded building
with 2/2 windows and a large brick chimney. This was the summer kitchen where slaves cooky
ed. _It is conpected to the main house by means of a small, one bay wide, gable (cont)

43 nustory end Sigmbeance 5oremiah Wayland had originally owned this land. When each of his
children married he gave them some property & this land was his gift to his daughter Ann.
She was born c. 1826 in Missouri. Ann Wayland married Dr. Murray who was an eye doctor
from Kahoka. He owned a home there but lived here summers & treated patients here. Ann
had the house built. They had two children; Mabel & Guy. Mabel Murray married O. Gilbert

w4 Descnpton 9f Envirgnment and Quibuldings . i . (cont)

To the northwest is an outbuilding. The house faces east
& is in the north part of St. Francisville. A stone cellar sits to the south.
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roofed room. The southern most building has exposed rafters in the eaves. In the
rear of the house, one window retains a 6/6 lighting pattern. The front porch was
remodeled twenty years ago & the summer kitchen was connected to the house about
30 years ago. The house has been heated by stoves since anyone can remember & apparent-
ly never had fireplaces. The ceiling has been lowered to about 12' and some of the
interior walls have been paneled. Some of the woodwork is the Grecian Ear type & is
pedimented.

Sargent. She inherited the house from her mother. One of their daughters was Ethel.

In 1930 Mabel was listed as the owner of this property which included 69.85 acres.
Apparently her husband had died by then. Ethel moved her family here. She had married
Mr. Bruns. They had been living in Keokuk. Doris, their daughter, was nine or ten
when they came here & moved in with "Grandma Mabel™. This was in 1933-34 & Doris states
she has lived here fifty years. The house has been passed down through the female

side of the family since it was built. Supposedly it was originally a one story home
and it is likely that Ann Wayland built it several decades before the 1890's. The one
6/6 window would indicate a building from the 1850-1860's.

Doris Bruns married George Walker & they reside here today. The house is signi-
ficant as a type of brick construction which resembles the cornbelt cube style & is not
often found in this area. It is also important because of its long connection with the
same family (although the family name changed because it passed through the female side).
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F Casc n ol Im Fualure . . .
2. Funier ce3chiDliun OLIMPOHANt Fudlules mhj g gtrycture is two houses built together. The northern

part is of log construction. Two rooms form the first level under the gable roof; to the
rear (E) is a pent roofed room which is also of log construction. The front entrance is
single leaf. Directly inside is a boxed stair. A large fireplace with mantel is between
the back room & the pent room. A clothes press is to the side. Windows on the north gable
end at first level are 2/2 and rectangular. A small attic window here is covered. A pent

porch crosses the front (W) facade & shelters half of the brick portion, Here the brick
structure has a 6/6 square window & a single leaf 6' high door. "The brickwork is (cont)

43 rsioiy «0d Symiticance Jaremiah Wayland is probably the most famous early settler of Clark
County and this was his residence. He was a farmer & stockraiser from Madison County,
Virginia who came to.Clark County in 1828. He built the original cabin here prior to 1832
but it was swept away in a great flood in 1832. He then built a new two room log house with

a large fireplace - on higher ground. Jeremiah was born to Joshua & Rachel Wayland in 1796.
Joshua wag a Revolutionary soldier. He moved his family west, to Shelby County, (cont)

4 Ddsciptan ot Enveronment 3nd Quibundings

, This structure sits within a brushy area & faces west. A
stone cellar is in the rear as is a well. It is located on the east side of St. Fransville.
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flemish bond. The porch has Eastlake turned posts. More brick construction extends

to the south. The brick ell has four rooms at first level. A dormer is over the
northeastern one & a pent porch with Eastlake turned posts is at the rear (NE). There
is a central chimney between the four rooms and a 4' interior door between the two front
rooms. On the south gable end, windows are 2/2 & extremely elongated. The cornice
area here is heavily molded. A corbelled cornice decorates the front. It is believed
the brick portion was built early, soon after the log portion, according to Leland
Wayland. The southern brick portion may be a later addition judging from the type of
window found here. According to the Missouri Historic Sites Catalogue, a fireplace &
stairway have been removed, the southern wall was rebuilt in 1883, & the mantel from **
Kentucky where Jeremiah taught school & married Nancy J. Bartlett. He & his two
brothers-in-law, Samuel Bartlett & George Haywood, decided to settle in Missouri.

They traveled to St. Louis & then Palmyra where they stayed a year. On a scouting

trip to Clark County (then lLewis County) they liked what they say & entered land there.
This was in the fall of 1829. Tha land was on the Des Moines River & St. Francisville
would adjoin it. Soon the wives & children followed the men to this area. Jeremiah
laid out an addition to Wayland in 1837 & made his second addition in 1848. By 1850 he
had at least four slaves. He retained them in 1860. Two slave houses were built north
of the house. BAccording to Leland Wayland, the great grandson of Jeremiah Wayland,
Jeremiah set all of his slaves free & sent some to California with $1,000. One went to
Palmyra & died in the poor house & one lived in Kahoka. ILeland can remember seeing
them there as a young boy. The first grand jury of Clark County in 1837 included
Jeremiah Wayland. His land here in St. Francisville encompassed 10 acres. Jeremiah
held several prominent positions. In 1834 he was one of three judges for that year's
election. He was granted a license to operate a ferry across the Des Moines River near
Fort Pike in 1837. The next year he was the road reviewer for the road from the Des
Moines River through Churchville (Alexandria) to St. Francisville. Jeremiah & Nancy
had nine children. They were Bartlett, Eliza (Pritchett), William, George H., Mary K.,
Mattie T., Samuel E., Anna (Murray), & Dr. J.A. Wayland. Of these, Bartlett, William &
Dr. J.A. had died prior to 1887.

The 1860 Census shows Jeremiah as a wealthy man. His real estate was recorded as
woth $23,300 & his personal estate was listed at $11,860. By 1870 the figures had
changed to $20,000 & $1,500 respectively.

Jeremiah was friends with the natives including the indian chief Keokuk &
Mack—-a-ce-ne-ne, who was killed at the Battle of Bad Ax after warning the settlers
it was not safe to remain in the area. The Waylands lived to celebrate their 60th
wedding anniversary. Jeremiah was a dedicated Baptist & responsible for building
the church at St. Francisville.

42. the brick ell was transfered to the kitchen of the original building.
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Jeremiah lived here until his death in 1883. Nancy was born in 1803 &
died in 1890. They are both buried in Wolfe cemetery.

After their deaths, the house went to the daughter Mattie. She never married
but did raise her nephew, Bob. Mattie willed the property to Rose Bostic (her
niece) for life. It was then to go to Guy Murray, & lastly to go to her nephew
Bob. They had not gotten along well & as a consequence she did not want him to
inherit the property until he was old, if at all.

Numerous letters of historical importance from Blackhawk, President Jackson,
& possibly VanBuren were burned in disagreement over the Wayland estate. Mattie
had willed the furniture & relics outright to Lewin Donaldson who had been raised
by Rose Bostic. Because of the terms of Mattie's will, & the results it caused
the Wayland "relics" are not together today & many were destroyed. She died about
1914, Lewin added the new roof. The house has been vacant about twenty-five
years. The log portion is thought to be the earliest remaining house in the county.

The house is significant for its early construction date, its connection to
the important Wayland family, & for its log construction & flemish bond treatment.
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42 Funies Sasciwbun ol Imporant Foatuies qy g o ohiupch has a double leaf centrally located entrance on
the east facade. The door is attenuated with five panels on each side & a transom. Above
is a two course stone lintel & a carved stone with the words "Baptist Church A.D. 1853".
The gable peak area is imbricated with half cove shingles. ©North & south facades are iden-
tical with a very large square window in the center & a narrow elongated window to either
side of the center. These have smooth stone sills & lintels. The west gable end also has
an imbricated peak which is Eierced by a round light. Two narrow rectangular windows are
symmetrically built here. The church was remodeled & rebuilt in 1904 using the (cont)
43 noioiy o0d Siimlicance Another source than the county church history indicates that a Baptist
Church society was organized in 1834 at Jeremiah Wayland's home. Their first service was
preached by Dr. Trabue. (undated article in the Media) This organization soon moved to the
Fox River & erected a building. There were twelve members including Jeremiah & Rachael
Wayland, his mother, Robert P. Mitchell & wife, Ursual Ford, George. Biggs, Judith P. Mitche
- {cont)
The church faces east & sits in the southern portion of
the small town of St. Francisville just east of county road B. It looks out over the Des

Moines River.
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original stones. The original structure had two entrances on the east facade. Men

& women not only used separate entrances but also sat on separate sides of the in-
terior. A beautiful carved wood pulpit was between the two front doors, according to
the article by Hazel LeMaster in the Media (date unknown). The east end also had a
belfry. It was used as a warning signal for emergencies as well as a call to service.
The back of the church featured a large fireplace. A rear entrance served blacks.
Along the north & south walls were five long windows. Often children were seated

on the deep window sills. The church was remodeled in 1904 & 1921. The changes

in 1904 were actually a rebuilding. The fireplace & chimney were replaced with a
stove. The church took on its present structure. At that time stained & frosted
glass replaced the original clear panes. A much higher pitch was built at the roof.
One front door replaced the early two with ten pane transoms. The present door was
opened with a "large old-fashioned folding key" according to the Media article.

The altar was relocated at the west end & a choir stall was built. Wainscotting

was put on the ceiling. In 1921 a furnace replaced the stove. After the Historical
Society received the church a new roof was put on in part by a large donation by
Lewin (Lewis) Donaldson.

& others. The Reverend Broaddus took charge of this Fox River Church about 1836.
Under his term, Wayland & several others left this church & met in St. Francisville.

The organizational date for the congregation of the St. Francisville church
dates back to 1844. That year they were one of eight that withdrew from the Bethel
Associlation to form the Wyaconda Baptist Association. It was instigated that year
by the Reverend Andrew Broaddus who had come to Clark County from Kentucky in 1836.
Important early members included Julia Bartlett, she was a charter member. Her
future husband, B.F. Bates, served as clerk several years. In 1850 this congrega-
tion sent Caleb Bush, L.B. Adams, J.Q. Choer, & A.F. Bartlett to the Wyaconda
Baptist Association.

Jeremiah Wayland financed the church. He donated the land, the construction
materials, & covered most of the labor. It was constructed in 1853. While under
construction it was twice struck by lightening. Upon completion, the walls were
20" thick and extended 34' x 48'. 1Irish settlers worked a quarry along the bluffs
between Marysville & St. Francisville. This was known as Big Hollow & was the source
of stone for the church (See DM 3 & 16). As the owner of the church, Jeremiah Wayland
stated in his will the "church I built I leave to the Baptists of St. Francisville."
He meant for it to always be available to any Baptists which might later come to
St. Francisville, according to Leland Wayland.

Gradually the membership dwindled until there were only three active members
left: Mr. & Mrs. Thomas Simpson & her mother, Maude Mauler. The last service was
held July 6, 1952 & at that time a quick claim deed was signed by the members turn-
ing the church over to the Clark County Historical Society. Nineteen seventy-seven
marked the first time the church had been used in twenty years. A tea was held for
the Historical Society, the D.A.R., & local residents.
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43.

Pastors have included Ormsby, J. Moore, Peter Turner, J.H. Delane, T.J. Musgrove,
James M. Lillard, A.S. Ingrman, Caleb Bush, T.N. Sanderson, L.W. Macks, S.W. Clay,
E.R. Stauffer, E.C. Drew, George H. Beard, W.H.F, Jones, F.M. Baker, E.L. Painter,
Francis Cooper, J.B. Johns, P.H. Beckham, & William Alderton.

St. Francisville celebrated its 150th Anniversary this summer with a full
weekend of special events including a real wedding in this church. Participants
wore old-fashioned costumes.

The structure is a definite tie to the area's historic past, even though
architecturally it no longer retains its original form, it is reconstructed with
the original materials.
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2 Fynber Cescnption ol Important Fuatwies The front facade has a square entry vestibule which rises to
a truncated hip roofed bell tower. It has gothic arched louvred vents. Church access is
provided by double leaf doors here. Above is a large heavily molded gothic arched window
with tracery. The tower has a wide cornice & molded eave midway up & at its top. ' The
front facade (S) is pierced only by a pair of 1/1 gothic arched windows. The east & west™
walls have four elongated gothic arched windows, these are also 1/1. The church has a wide
raking cornice & plain cornerboards.

43 nmisicry o0d Siymiicance The Methodist Society was the first church society to be established in
Clark County. It began in 1832 in St. Francisville. Their first circuit rider was
Reverend Allen. George Biggs' residence was the first meeting place. By 1834 the Baptists
were meeting at Jeremiah Wayland's house & by 1853 they had erected a church so the
Methodists held their services there.

(cont)
The church sits near the middle of St. Francisville &
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faces south.
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In 1837 the Methodist Church included all of Clark County. Then the circuit
rider was Reverend Samuel G. Patterson. He lived in St. Francisville & had to ride
100 miles (round trip) to cover his circuit. This took four weeks. Subsequent
circuit riders were John Hatcher, George B. Bowman, Martin Eads, Tyson Dynes,
William Holmes, Walter Toole, Abraham Still, James Calloway, & Sears. Wages were
about $76 per year (if that) & the job was full of hardships. Most of the men died
young from sickness due to disease or exposure to weather. The Haywood home in St.
Francisville was always ready to welcome the circuit rider, unlike most others where
he would receive poor meals, etc. The Haywoods had set aside a special room for the
preacher & made a point to serve him good meals.

In 1862 the St. Francisville Society had 32 members. The Methodist Episcopal
Church South was organized in Kahoka in 1870. The group in St. Francisville was still
meeting in the Baptist church. By 1881 members included William H. Haywood, Elizabeth
Haywood, Albert L.E. Haywood, Alice M. Haywood & at least 15 others. Icy baptisms
were held in the nearby Des Moines River by Reverend Dave Jackson & he increased
membership to sixty by 1894. The following year this congregation erected a church
building, the Methodist Protestant Church. Donations came from over 260 people &
about $685 was collected. Susie Keith joined in 1899 & was active until her death
in 1967. See DM-14.

The building was available to other denominations. At one time both the
Methodist Episcopals & the Methodist Protestants met here. Sunday school was
held by Protestant societies in the church. The church was heated by coal stoves
& used kerosene lamps for lighting. The Ladies Aid Society played a very important
role in the longevity of the church & at times even helped pay the preacher. Between
1947 & 1955 it was served by visiting ministers. Then it became part of the Wayland
Circuit of the United Methodist Church. Clinton Frie Woofard became the minister
in 1979. Services are currently held here.

The church is important because of its long standing ties to the community &
its history of serving their religious needs.
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2. Funier Cescnpliun ol Importamt Fudtuies The front (N) facade features a two story bell tower with a
The openings (probably louvered vents) are elongated rectangular

The north wall has double openings, all have been
The eaves are molded & a wide plain cornice & wide plain cornerboards provide

& distinction between the various parts.
tower/entry vestibule has a double leaf door with five panels per side; this has a trabeat-

Original windows on this side have been filled in with clapboarding & two ad-
On the east corner is a pent roofed room which extends from (cont)

truncated hip roof.

shapes with segmental arch shaped tops.

covered.
visual contra -

ed header.
ditions have been made.

The lower portion of the bell
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risiory «nd Swpmhicance St Francisville was the first white settlement in Clark County.
This school is located in the original town.
History Joseph Wayland taught the first school here, and it was also the first school
They built a stone school building.

M. Faxton, Piper, Sharon, Jackson, Dinsmore, Welch, Kerrick, McLaughlin, & Kelly.
St. Francisville was

laid out in 1834.

taught in the county.

built on a gradex scale than the rural schools of the county.

According to the 1887

Teachers/principals included A.

1t was

Dm-19 is
(cont)

44 Descnption ot Envieonment 3nd Quidundings

The school faces north and is just east of county road B.
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the entry vestibule to the east corner. On the other side of the tower, a small
gable roofed addition has been added in approximately the center of this space.

The west gable end has no openings; the east gable end has two transom-type windows,
which have been closed. The rear facade (S) shows asymmetrically grouped windows
with every other one clapboarded over. From the southeast corner the windows follow
this sequence: a group of seven under one trabeated header, a group of five under
one trabeated header, & a single window with a trabeated header. The windows are
4/4, double hung, & have an elongated rectangular shape. Chimneys which served stoves
are at the east & west gable ends, which have molded eaves & molding at the cornice.
Small rectangular windows are exposed at basement level. A basement was constructed
in 1950.

After being put into use as a community center, a full kitchen & two baths were
added. Wood floors were redone. The interior has molded, beaded woodwork with bull's
eye cornerplates & wainscotting.

district #26 and this was one of the larger districts in the county. This was the
principal town of the county in the mid 1800's. By 1887 the population was about
400.

It is thought this school was built sometime around the turn-of-the century.
Among the teachers were Ruth Randolph, Leona Toops, Doris Walker & Hazel LeMaster.
The school closed after the 1965-65 term.

In 1947, Maryville was annexed to St. Francisville which in turn was annexed to
Running Fox District in 1968.

The community purchased the building in 1968. Gilbert Sargent paid $100 down
for the $1,000 purchase price. Ray Campbell bought the bell & donated it to the
community. The school now serves various purposes such as family reunions. The
Toops family reunion started the fundraising for the community center. Chairs
were donated in memory of loved ones.

In 1919 Ethel Shallenberger was the teacher. By 1920 the two room school still
operated with one teacher. Grades 1-4 were in one room & grades 5-8 were in the other.

It is significant as probably the most "sophisticated" extant example of the
early Clark County school.










ST. PATRICK

The first settlers, Richard & Rose Simpson Riney, located here in 1833.
By 1834 there was.a log church with a dirt floor to serve the area's religious
needs. In 1838, Joseph Rosat of Philadelphia, PA willed 80 acres to the church.
Settlers were generally Irish Catholics. The village was first called North
Santa Fe or Santa Fe Mission since one of the Santa Fe Trails was to the west.
Circa 1860 ten acres of the church property was sold in lots to create the
town of St. Marysville. About that time, a large brick church was built; a rec-
tory was also constructed using home-made brick. The area had a resident priest
since 1846. The rectory was of two stories with large halls, two stairways,
nine high-ceilinged rooms, & a stove in every room. In the late 1860's the
town applied for a post office but another St. Marysville existed in Clark
County so this village had to change its name; it became known as St. Patrick.
In 1875 the settlement consisted of a church, the rectory, a blacksmith shop,
two stores, a schoolhouse, and some houses.,

The town got a post office in 1899. A frame church was built in 1903 to
replace the brick one. A large school was built in 1909 which was three stories
high. The parish school was opened in 1910 & staffed by the Sisters of Divine
Providence of San Antonia, Texas. The sisters only stayed until 1912, after
that lay teachers taught for a period of three years. The town's prosperity
seemed to come & go in cycles. The post office closed in 1914 but reopened
in 1921. John F. & Annie Uhlmeyer opened a Store in St. Patrick in 1923. That
year a large statue of St. Patrick was donated by Mr. & Mrs. J.J. Wheeler &
put in front of the school. This weighed 1,000 pounds. In 1935 Father Francis
0'Duignan came to St. Patrick from Ireland. He wanted to bring some degree of
prosperity to St. Patrick or at Teast mahage to raise enough money to repair the
parish building. He hoped to replace the church with a shrine. It was arranged
to have the post office stamp a green postmark & shamrock on the envelopes mailed
through the St. Patrick post office around St. Patrick's day. Donations were
raised for the church by this means. The idea was first implemented in 1936.



At this same time the parochial school was changed to a public school so

that it could survive. It had been suffering from lack of financing. In 1951
a rectory was built & by 1953-54 the teaching staff consisted entirely of lay
persons.

The shrine of St. Patrick soon became a reality. It was modeled after
the Church of Four Masters near Donegal, Ireland & is built in the Celtic or
ancient Irish style. The marble for the altar or communion rail came from
Carthage, the green marble is Italian, and the exterior stone is Wisconsin
granite. This was shipped from Canton in coal cars. Stained glass windows
were designed & created in Dublin, Ireland & shipped to Quincy, I1linois.
Here they were reassembled by the Oenning Glass & Book Company. The designs
are from illustrations from the ancient Book of Kells. The shrine was
dedicated in 1957. Within the year, the Sisters of St. Francis were back at
the school to teach yet in 1962 the high school students were transferred
to Kahoka. By 1967-68 all students (including grade schoolers) were sent to
Kahoka.

St. Patrick is Tlocated in Jackson Township in Section 13. Today it
basically consists of a few houses, a general.store with the post office,
a combination truck firm/seed/fertilizer/feed business, the rectory, & the
Shrine of St. Patrick. In the 1970's the school was torn down & the statue
was placed in front of the church.



ch and Parochial Residence of Rev. P. J. 0'Ro
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cresting decorated with shamrocks. Inset on the front (W) facade is the single leaf entrance
with transom. Each facade has a door. On the south, a small window has been added to the
east of the door (since the photo was taken). The rear window is 2/2 & rectangular. Two
rooms comprise the interior which is graced with an ornate pressed tin ceiling, four foot
high wainscotting with molded trim, & trabeated door & window headers. A small room in the
rear has two doors for access. The store was heated by a stove & still retains two of the
original massive wnod counterss The chimney is corbelled
43 maatoiy ead Ssgmiticancy This building served as the St. Patrick General Store. It was built in
1916 by the grandfather of the present day owner. This was John N. Kirchner. He operated
the business to include sales of hardware, groceries & dry goods. The post office was also
located here. John ran the store until 1945.
The Kirchner family came from Bavaria. Henry & Margarette Kircliner were the paﬁenti)of
con
This commercial structure faces west & sits just on the
east side of Highway 81 in St. Patrick. The Shrine of St. Patrick is to the southeast & the
owner of this store lives next door to the north.
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43.

Nicholas who was born in 1845. He married Conda Grimes & they had one son, John,
before they left Germany in 1868. After 66 days of sailing they reached America.
According to the article in the 0ld Settler's Special Edition, they existed on a
daily diet of soup beans for these 66 days & had only one pint of good water per day.
This was given to the baby.

They settled near Alexandria & later Nicholas' parents & some of their other
children came to America. They all moved to near St. Patrick & build a residence
between 1890 & 1900. Henry died in 1898 & was buried in Zion Cemetery. Margarette
died in 1906 & was buried in St. Patrick's Cemetery. Nicholas & Conda eventually had
nine children: John, Nicholas Jr., Henry, Kate (Roland), Maggie (Cameron), Annie
(Ellison), Lena (Fee), Lizzie (Toops) & one which died in infancy.

Nicholas died in 1933 & Conda passed away in 1943 at the age of 95. By then
she had 19 grandchildren & 33 great grandchildren. The couple is buried in St.
Patrick Cemetery.

Currently Clarence Kirchner owns the building. Within the last year his daughters
have become the proprietors of the "0ld Irish Antique Shoppe" here. They are Marcia
Hardin & Myrna Daughtery.

The store is significant for its long standing ties with the Kirchner family
& the St. Patrick Community.
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UNION

The town of Union sits in Section 11 in Union Township. It is Tlocated
about five miles south of Kahoka. Benjamin Rodgers surveyed & laid out
Union on December 5, 1855. It had four blocks and a public square and was
known as Wrightsville until 1861 when its name was changed to Union because
of David Moore, a Union sympathizer. According to the story, Moore painted
out "Wrightsville" and his name on his storefront and replaced it with
"Union". He Tlater led Union forces at the Battle of Athens. Union had a
Baptist church, a schoolhouse, a post office, at least two stores, a black-
smith shop, a chair factory, and a hotel, plus several residences. Today
it has Union school and one dwelling in the immediate vicinity.

Colonel David Moore, more than any other person, is generally given
the credit for securing northeast Missouri into the control of the Union.
He had been.a captain in the Mexican War. According to the 1887 History he
"could tell the difference between cartridge powder & black sand" and
"possessed more than the average stock of common sense, was an unconditional
Union man, and absolutely destitute of anything like personal fear". His
neighbors, best friends, & his three sons were Confederates who fought again
st him. He raised a company of men from the region & this led to others
raising other companies which joined Moore so he soon had about one thousand
men under him. This was called the First Northeast Missouri Regiment. Pro-
visions, guns, ammunition, & horses were provided by the men. About half
were gone at a time to tend to their farms. This was in the spring of 1861.
By July, Moore had been in a skirmish at Etna & decided to set up camp in
Athens so he could get supplies by the Des Moines Valley Railroad. It was
here that the "Battle of Athens" took place with Moore pited against Col.
Green & the Confederates. Green attacked on July 5th (see G-1). Moore had
Tess than 500 men (343 it is believed) & Green claimed less than 400 although
reliable sources said he had 540. Moore won and this established Union claim
to the territory.
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42, Funher Cescnption ol imporiant Faatures The front (S) facade has a four paneled central single leaf
door flanked by square shaped 6/6 windows. Window & door trim is plain. At upper level
here are three 6 pane half windows. The west gable end has one 6/6 window at the lower
level. Across the rear is a pent carport type addition. A small pent porch caps the front
door. The east facade has the exterior cellar entrance. Chimneys may have served either
stoves or fireplaces. The wall construction is heavy timber.

43 niioiy o0y Swpmicance T 1878 Charles Wahrer woned 80 acres here & had this house. The 1800
census portrays him as a native of Baden Germany born in 1844. He owned the property free
& clear. His wife Catherine was born in Iowa in 1847. Children at home then included

Caroline (27), Hannah (23), & Emma (17). All were born in Missouri putting the family in

this state by at least 1873. Charles died in 1922, Catherine in 1931. They are buried in
Kahoka Cemetery. By 1930, Sterling Burke owned these 79.4 acres. (cont)

cnption of Envieonment and Quidundings
44 Descuob YidMIS The house sits within an overgrown brushy area & faces

south. An outbulldlng is to the northwest & the site is near the center of the section.

49 Souices oi,Inldnnation 46. Prevared oy
1878, 1896, 1915 Atlases & HargarethJ\-gc]i?eI:'aﬁ%eﬁ
1930 & 1981 Platbook 47. Qrganization  NEMO
1900 Census ) , Regio %

Cemetery Inscwiption Gon ' e

.
234 o Qs




43. The house stands abandoned & in poor condition but serves as a good example
of an early vernacular building.
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2 Furul Cascnptiun ol Impodant Fadlures . .
42, Furthiet P ““The front (S) facade is graced by a pent porch with square

battered posts, molded caps, & a square balustrade. Centrally located at both levels is a
single leaf door, the lower one has a rectangular transom. Two attenuated rectangular win-
dows are to each side of the door. Windows are 4/4 & have pedimented headers. Cornerboards
are capped & the wide cornice rakes at the gable ends. A two story addition is built onto
the rear (NW) corner & a one story pent roofed addition is added to the north & east of this.

The cellar entrance is on the west side. Corbelled chlmneys remain, they served stoves.
(cont)

13 Rniory «nd Sigmibicance

In 1878 J. Hodges owned 380 acres here & resided in the house. The 1870
census shows James H. Hodges as a 42 year old farmer from Indiana with a net worth of $2,600
his wife Martha was 41 & from the same state.  Their children at home were John (18), Rolla
(9), Franklin (4), & Margaret (3). In 1875 the son John S. married Martha E. Leach & by

1878 it is though he was the owner of this property. The 1910 census shows John S. Hodges
{r’*nn‘l‘\
(" Dascription o1 Enwionmént and Quiduiaings gy Wyaconda River flows to the southeast west of the

house about 1/2 mile. Several outbuildings are to the south and east.
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42. Millwork is pedimented & the stair is boxed. Former gingerbread detailing has been .
torn off.

43. as owning his property free & clear. His wife was 54 at that time & Clara (19) &
Florence B. (16) were the only children under their roof. J.S. Hodges died in 1923,
Martha E. died in 1946. The Henry V. Muhrers came here by 1912 & remained until
their deaths. Henry V. may have been the son of George & Maria Muhrer. George immi-
grated to America from Germany in 1854 & came to Clark County in 1865. They had
twelve children. H.V. Muhrer owned at least 110 acres here by 1915. Merle Muhrer was
born to Henry & his wife in the east room of the house, they had five children. Merle
married Madeline Ackley & they had four children, including Darryl. Since the death
of Darryl's parents the house has been used as a rental property. Darryl Muhrer married
Laura Irwin, their son is Truman. The Ronnie McDermott's have been renting the property.

It is significant as a fine example of the I-house style with characteristics from the
1870's.
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€2, Funner Cesciiptiun ol Importam Fedtuies The east gable facade contains the two single leaf entrances
with transoms. Each door is comprised of six panels. Window & door trim is the molded ped-
iment type. The four side windows are rectangular & attenuated in composition. There is a
noticeable similarity between these & windows on U-2, located nearby. A fan light of staing
glass pierces the east gable peak. The altar is located here on the interior. A small gabl
roofed entry has been added on the southwest while a gable room has been added to the west
along with a basement.

oo

43 nitory o0y Swpmihicance The 1896 Atlas shows a Baptist church & cemetery at this location, 1t
does not appear in the Atlas of 1878; that year the surrounding property of 320 acres be-
longed to Permelia Smith. The church is also not listed in the 1887 history which mentions
baptist churches in the county at that time. The church must post-date 1887. It is signi-

ficant %s‘ an example gg.the rural vernacular church which retains its original details in
spite of some later additions.

44 Desciiphion of Envioament and Quiduidings

The church faces east & sits just south of County road D
on the eastern edge of Section l4. The cemetery extends to the west. The site tops a hill
which overlooks the Wyaconda River to the southwest. A small outbuilding is to the south.
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or cloak room addition on the front facade.

vestibule with a single leaf door.

show these to have been trabeated.

This rectangular plan structure retains the entry vestibule
This side (east) contains the gable roofed

At its sides are small 1/1 rectangular shaped windows.
The entry is flanked by 2/2 rectangular windows on the main facade wall.
Side walls have the same 2/2 type window.

west corner a pent roofed room has been added.

Historic photos
On the south-

13 hsiory end Sejndhicancy

a public square.
location is shown on~the map.
$497.50.

in district #57 after reorganization.

Union was platted in 1855 by Benjamin Rodgers to include four blocks and
Until 1861 it was known as Wrightsville.

A school was here by 1878.
The current structure was erected in 1901 at a cost of
The builder, Peter Freed, built several other schools in the area.
After 1964-65 the school closed.

Its

The school was

Ethel May Smith of
(cont)

4 Descnpuon 3t Envienment and Quibundgings

east.

The structure sits in the small community of Union & faces
Union cemetery is about 1/2 mile north.
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43. Granger was the last teacher.

The school is significant as an example of the turn-of-the century school
located in a small town.







WAYLAND

The town was first known as Wayland Station after it began in the 1870's
at the crossroads of the route from St. Francisville to Palmyra. In 1851
several men measured off a Targe tract of Tand which was patented to Thomas
Worthington, a revolutionary soldier. By 1870, this land belonged to Richard
Hennessy, Sr. and formed much of "Wayland Station". His house still stands on
the Floyd Wilson farm south of Wayland. Right-of-way was granted to the Missouri,
Towa, & Nebraska Railroad Company to cross the corner of this Tand; the triangle
formed became Stanley Park, part of Hennessy's first addition to the town of
Wayland. P.S. Stanley was the first station agent for the railroad. A number
of small stores & shops were built in a short time. General stores were kept
by the Barnett Brothers, a Mrs. McKay, & George Smith. Businesses in 1887 in-
cluded the Grate Brothers Hardware Store, the Henry & Emma Clark Hotel, 1 boarding
house (which ran until the 1930's), Wilson's Hotel, the H.S. Reese Livery Stable,
two blacksmith shops, & one saloon. William & Michael Hennessy established a
large grain warehouse & grain buying became the leading industry of Wayland. In
1882-83, 125,000 bushels of grain were shipped. Large amounts of hay, cattle,
hogs, sheep, cucumbers, watermelons, & wood were also shipped. In 1890 the
Hennessy brothers, who were nephews of Richard Hennessy, Sr., built the first
grain elevator. It burned and was rebuilt but then lost in the 1893 depression.

William McDermott, sometimes described as the wealthiest man in Clark County,
bought the land & other interests from the Hennessy's. The Tand was subdivided &
became McDermott's addition to Wayland. During the twenty years after 1893
Wayland saw its greatest period of growth. The block that faced Des Moines Street
was filled with lTarge buildings. Wayland Bank was opened by C.P. Fore in a new
brick building. W.C. Fletcher had a drugstore with the Lodge hall on the second
floor. Harry Daw ran a dry goods store. A new Baptist church was built east of
these stores and a second grain elevator was built by the Winkelmans. In the
late 1890's. the Methodist Episcopal South Church was built. This construction
continued in a building boom which Tasted several decades. A brick school was
built in 1915. By 1964 the Catholic Church, built in 1887, was replaced by a
new structure. The Methodist Episcopal Church North was built about 1900. Three
generations of the Fox family ran a successful mercantile & grocery business in
Wayland. A fire destroyed the original store in the early 1900's. They rented



The Fox family

until 1915 when the frame school house was available for sale.
The business

bought this & moved it across from the former railroad station.
was later sold out to the R.M. Riney family which continued the business until

Just recently. During its past, Wayland has had four newspapers: The Wayland

Times, The 01d Homestead, The Wayland News, & The Wayland Hustler.

Wayland is situated in Sections 29 & 31 of Des Moines Township. In 1900

its population was 337, by 1980 it had risen to 498.
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42, Funner Cascnptiun ol IMporiam Fastures Thig "' plan house features a single leaf door on the front
(W) facade. There is an oval glass transom & the door has two round arches on the top half.
Windows to either side are 2/2, rectangular shaped & very elongated. The gable ends have
paired windows that are the same type. An ell extends to the rear. This has square shaped
4/4 windows on the north & east. A pent porch runs along the south side of this ell, the
east corner is enclosed. The house has a wide raking cornice, plain corner boards & a
corbeled chimney.

13 nistory «0d SWMRCANCE Ao rently after the owner died, the property was left to Bluff Couey
who resides next door to the north. The property is significant as a good example of the
"Z" style. -~

44 Dascuption of Enwirunment anu Oulvuvmm-)sw .. .
The house faces west onto Hennessey Street & isha residen-

tial area. A garden is in the rear.
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¢ Fuither Caescnplivn ol Impodiant Faatures

front facade here (S).

Large rectangular windows flank the door & have been covered.
pressed metal sheathing with a brick design forms the exterior covering.
topped with an overhanging cornice upheld by two wooden scroll brackets.

A four paneled double leaf door is centrally located on the
The entrance is inset behind this & there is a two light transom.

Across the front facade a
The building is

13 hiioiy «nd Suyndicance

(through 1957).

rear; next door he also had a furniture shop & casket display.

Owens & Paul Ferguson.

Henry Kircher had a business in operation here & next door in 1904
He ran a hardware store in this building with a funeral business in the

Subsequent owners were Bud

44 Descnpuan of Envionment and Quibundgings

The building faces south onto Des Moines Street.
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Frontage on Roay

2 Funner Tescnption ol impontant Fudtures mhe eactern building features a pressed metal front with a

brick & stone design. The boom town front is topped by two courses
upper level has two 1/1 rectangular windows.
front facade.
windows to either side are large & rectangular with four panes.
plate area. The side wall (E) is finished in board & batten.

dition crosses the rear.
door & large rectangular window have trabeated headers.

The storefront facade has an inset single leaf door with transom.
Beneath is a molded kick-

A large concrete block ad-

The western building here has a two bay front.
Carsiding is used as the (cont)

of the "stone".

A metal pent overhang crosses the entire
Main

The single

The

leaf

€

43 Misi0iy end SHmMCINCE The western building here was the old Wayland Telephone Exchange.

1940's it was no longer the phone office.
the owner.
machine.

ing was the construction office for the Keokuk & Western Railroad.

About sixty-five years ago his wife's granddad, Lee Elschlager,
It was brought back from Lancaster & is currently in use here.

It is now used as a broom manufacturing shop by
owned the broom
The eastern build

Upstailrs was the

By the

(cont)
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The building faces south onto Des Moines Street.
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42 .

43.

covering. The side (WP has 1/1 rectangular shaped windows. In the antique store,
the inside stair has been removed, one back door has been closed, & one door has
been cut.

law office of H.H. Fore. At other times the two upstairs rooms were rented to
laborers on the railrcad. A machine/repair shop is in the rear. A store & cafe were
in the front at one time, a Mrs. Baker had a general merchandise business. Bud

Owens owned the building & used it as storage for his hardware business. After that
the Bennett family owned this & in 1974 the present owners took over.

&
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«2. Funner Cescnption ol impodiamt Fadiwies  magt portion - A boom town front rises off the gabled roof.

At the upper level the front facade (S) features three bays. A single leaf door is flanked
by 1/1 small square windows. It is no longer used as a residence. The exterior stairs on
the east wall provide access to a second single leaf door, also flanked by 1/1 small square
windows. The storefront facade has 3 bays. Double leaf screen doors open into a recessed
entrance. This has sidelights & a transom. To either side are large rectangular windows

with paneled kickplates below. A pent roof overhang extends across the store front facade
& is roofed with sheet metal. The western building here also has a boom town front, (cont)

13 rusiory «0d Swpmhicance

The western portion of this property was a grocery store in the past.

They sold everything from soup to nuts & also took in cream & eggs. Next door, to the east
the general store sold everything from darning needles to thrashing machines. Stock includ
ed clothing & Model T coils. Free movies were shown every Wednesday night in the street &

Jerry Hull sold popcorn from the machine for 25¢. Hardware was also carried in the store
{cont) |

44 Oeschipuan o Enveonmeént 3nd Ouibundings

4% Souices ol Intdnnaton

The store faces south onto Des Moines Street. A shed is
to the west & Jerry Hull has recentlﬁ:%iiis a new log house to the rear.
/
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43.

but no second story. Its store front windows are very large & divided into four
panes. In other respects, this store matches the one to the east: molded wooden
kickplate, double leaf screen doors, transom, & sidelights. The interior has beaded
wainscotting. A small gable roofed addition is on the rear (NW). Basement access
is in the rear & a 6/6 paned window is also found there (NE).

& coal was sold.

Jerry Hull bought the two stores in 1972 from Fred Freiden who had purchased
it at a tax sale. Since 1972 this has been Hull's Antiques. Jerry Hull married
Velma J. & together they had two daughters: Virginia Thomas & Bonnie McPherson.
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<2 Funines Tascnpton ol Impodant Fadtures  mpe front facade was fashioned to have a boom-town front
after the discontinuation of the building as a school. A small pent entry vestibule is
centered on the front (N), this wasalater remodeling. The storefront area was also later
remodeled, large windows were covered, as was the transom, and small windows were used as a
replacement. The kickplate area is of paneled wood. Inside the vestibule, the single leaf
door has sidelights. Windows are generally 1/1 square shaped & trabeated except for the

window on the east. It has 6 panes over 6 and an elongated shape. The building has a wide
raking cornice & plain cornerboards. A three sided polygonal entrance is on the south. (con

{)

43 rusioiy «0d Swpmheance Thig building originally served as the Wayland School. A new brick school

was built in 1915. So that same year this building went up for sale; the Fox family pur-
chased it & moved it to this location across from the former railroad station (now gone).
The Fox family ran a successful mercantile & grocery business in Wayland for three genera-

tions. Their original store was destroyed b{ fire about 1900. They rented a buildingunti
they bought_the school,. The business was sold out to the R.M. Riney family. It had {cont)

SHph 1 Environment and Quil . .
44 Qescuptan of £avil ' utounaings The store faces north onto Des Moines Street. The front
entrance of the school is in the rear & faces south. There is a mobile home in the back
yvard.
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43.

This has double leaf paneled doors. The rectangular area over the door is covered
& may have been either the sign or a transom type window. There are now two windows
upstairs at each gable end. It is likely these were not here when the building was
used as a school, possibly the upstairs was used as a residence.

been vacant for about one year when Larry Riney got it about five or six years ago.
The Rineys now have an antique & repair shop here.

At one time the school was known as district forty-five. The building is signi-
ficant as a larger, more elaborate school than usually found; it was not so much a
"rural" school as a "town" or city school.

The proprietors of the J.J. Fox Store in Wayland, which was started in 1894 and
ywned and operated by three generations of the Fox family.

Photo Courtesy of Anna Marie Hennessy










ywned and operated by three generations of the Fox family.

Photo Courtesy of Anna Marie Hennessy
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42 Funner Sescnpiion ol Imperant Fedtuies vavching porches flank both sides of the gable roofed bay on

These porches have truncated hip roofs & are upheld by thick Eastlake
type turned posts with graceful cutwork brackets to either side.

slender design are located along the porch cornice.

the front facade (E).

centrally on the front facade.
lar shaped windows.
headers.

Other brackets of a more

A three sided polygonal bay is situated
It has one large rectangular window flanked by 1/1 rectangu-
Windows generally follow this 1/1 rectangular form & have trabeated

Two single leaf doors are located in the corner of the south porch.
large oval glasses one of which has been etched with a picture of a locomotive.

These have
The (cont)

13 risioty «nd Sigmihicance

was
the
the
The

built by his parents.
age of 100.

railroad & collects antique cars.

H.F. & Anna Kircher moved into this house on their wedding in 1905.
H.F. died in the 1950's, Anna died in 1977 after nearly reaching
Jim “Bogener & his wife bought the house on November 1, 1977.
HIs wife is a school teacher & they have a young son.
house is important as a fine example of Queen Anne architecture whose character has

It

Jim works for

(cont)

4 Descnption of Envionment and Quibundings

trees lend a stately feeling to the yard.

& a barn is west of that.

The house faces east onto Main Street.
A summer kitchen is in the north part of the yard
The board barn apparently never had battens.

Several substantial

Now it is covered

with siding. It contained three vehicle stalls, four horse stalls and also held a {cont)
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42.

43.

44.

other front entrance is under the north proch & also single leaf. The cornerboards

& the cornice are plain. BAnother three sided polygonal bay is on the south gable
facade. A two story gable roofed ell extends to the rear (W). On its north is a

one story enclosed porch/room with a truncated hip roof. The basement entrance is at
the north gable peak. An enclosed pent porch was built onto the south side of the
rear ell in 1955 as a golden wedding anniversary present for the owners. The house
basically retains its original plan & appearance. It is reputed to have been the
first house in Wayland to have electric service & to have an electric fixture. The
interior has woodwork with bull's eye cornerplates. Molding is at the ceiling &
baseboards are wide. Five rooms are upstairs & five are downstairs. There is a pantry,
laundry, bathroom, & storage sunporch. Chimneys have been removed. The only interior
changes have been paint, wallpaper, & a new furnace.

remained virtually unchanged through the years.

& surreys. There was also a granary & coal bin.
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(2. Funier Cascnpbiun Ol IMPGHant Fadtuiesp o Front facade (W) has a sliding garage
A single leaf door gives access.to the interior.

end.
this door.

door, & a small square window.

Two rectangular
The south side has a small square four pane window, a dutch
four pane window, & a single leaf plank door. The rear wall also has a

The southern portion has animal stalls.

dooxr on the north
windows are above
door, another small
garage door, a plank

) Risiciy «0d Signiicance

barn here built about 1904.
Sr. & his brother Wi%liam Sr.

Charles Winkelman & his
Thelr children
established a
Wagons used to line up in such numbers that
The grain business was continued until 1946

were Bertha, Charles,

when the elevator burned.

wife, Nancy Elizabeth Dawson, had the house &
Joe,
large grain elevator in Wayland about 1900.

they extended out past the east edge of town.

& William. Charles,

The Winkelman's had
(cont)

4 Descnptun of Environment and Jutbundings

Hennessy Street is to the north; the barn faces west.

The Winkelman residence is to the southwest.

4y Suuicus ol Inloumanoa
William J. Winkelman
1896 Atlas

*Charles Winkleman Property in the 1896 Atlas
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43,

a farm at Alexandria which is still used & in the family today. That barn was built

from logs rafted down the Mississippi River.

The barn in Wayland (DM-26) was used by

the Winkelmans for their buggies, horses & cows, & later for their car. The current
William Winkelman served in the State Legislature in 1940 & was born here. 1In 1942

he married Mildred Williams.

The barn is unusual for the type of roof used.
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42 Funner Sescnphon ob important Features  a pioh hoom town front lends presence to this structure. J
The cornice features several wide courses of molding & decorative garlands. Two 1/1window

of rectangular shape are located at the second level on the front facade (N). A header
course crosses the front & two round arches in bas-relif are above each window. The front
is covered with pressed metal sheathing which is made to resemble molded concrete block.
The cornice just above the storefront has the painted words "Drug Store" in a recessed
panel. At the lower level of the front facade, large rectangular windows are to either
side of the entrance. The double leaf entrance is inset but this space has been (cont)
43 rusioiy end Swpmticance Orjginally the drugstore sat to the east, on the corner. It was bullt
by Marie Hennessy's great-great—aunt Bridget Taylor. The aunt is described as a woman of
great drive who was responsible for convincing a doctor of great ability to locate in
Wayland. This was Doctor Riggs, thought to have been head of his class in the Missouri

State University Medical School. He had his office in the drugstore, Mrs. Taylor resided
(cont)

4 Descnption o Enaveunment any Oulouudmgs
: " This structure faces north onto Des Moines street & is
located in the east end of the central business district.

€ L Inlonmanon ‘
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42.

43.

enclosed so that a single leaf door is on the exterior. Molded kickplates are be-
neath these windows. The east facade is covered with pressed metal sheathing of
brick design. An addition is at the far south corner. An exterior stair on the

east wall gives access to the upper level.

upstairs. An annex was added in the rear. The structure was moved circa the 1920's.
Uncle Sam Taylor was also the pharmacist according to Marie Hennessy. After her
aunt, her uncle James ran the business. He started using part of the building as
rental units. At first the upstairs was rented as rooms but later it was converted
to apartments. Another doctor connected with this location was Dr. Todd. A Mr.
Wiggins took over the drug business in the 1930's & 1940's & continued until James
died in 1956. At that time Marie Hennessy inherited the property. In 1978 she
rented the upstairs as apartments & has done gquite a bit of work to the structure
but has been continually plagued by vandalism. The W.C. Fletcher Drugstore was
across the street on the north side of Des Moines. This area burned in 1978.

John Hubert's Addition to Wayland covered the land which was his farm southeast
of the crossroads (intersection of Main & Des Moines). Hennessy's First Addition was

to the southwest of the crossroads.

This building is significant as a fine example of commercial vernacular architec-
ture.
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H Casc n ol Important Fadatures . . K .
2. Furiher wascnphy pottant Y This structure, which was used for commercial purposes in the

past, has a boom town front. A single leaf entrance is centered in the front facade (W) &
has a 1/1 square shaped window to either side. These have been covered. Windows on the
side are similar & also covered. The exterior is covered with clapboarding which has been
laid over horizontal siding. The building appears to be fire damaged & also to have been
used as a residence. There is a window & a single leaf entrance in the rear. There is
evidence that a porch existed at some point.

LA

43 nosiory end ShEINCE mhi g byyilding has been vacant for sometime & seems to have been last used
as a residence. It is the oldest standing building in Wayland according to Marie Hennessy
and was built at the time the railroad came to Wayland. The building has been used for
everything you can think of, according toMiss. Hennessy. It was a doctor's office, a
lawyer's office, a millinery shop, and a residence. The original use is not exactly kr{lgwn

Qn

w4 Dascription ot Envieonment anu Quibungings ] ‘ i
This structure faces west onto Main Street. The

Hennessey livery stable did business directly across the street. City Hall is to the south
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43.

but an entire row of little stores sat along this street & faced west. The father
of Marie's great-great aunt Bridget Taylor was one of seven Richard Hennessys in
the family's history. Bridget acquired the corner here (southeast corner at the
intersection of Main & Des Moines) & built the drugstore (DM-27). She also built

the building next to it. The Snively drugstore was along the row of small stores
mentioned above.

This structure is significant as an early example of vernacular commercial
architecture.
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(2. Funihies Caescnptiun ol Impodiant Fodtures

Under the front gable peak,

generally 1/1 and square shaped.

The porch is upheld by plain round columns.

The front facade (S) has a three sided polygonal bay windoﬁ
and a pent porch which has a conical roof at the west end and a balustrade with square post
Other features include capped cornerboards,

This house has several unusual aspects in its architecture.
a gothic arched projection has been boxed in.
repeated in the front dormer, here the arch springs from heavy molded caps.

This motif is
Windows are

trabeated headers on doors. & windows, a wide plain cornice, a diamond pane leaded glass

{cont)

S

¢

13 misioiy end Simh@Ance mhe house was built by a Dr. Black,

stairs & also one in Winchester.

eventually wound up property of the Bank of Wayland.
They had married in 19l6.

purchased this property.
Morgan Cooper & Betty (O'Day).

of Wayland.

He had an office up-

After his wife died the house went into various hands &

In 1928 Mr. & Mrs. Morgan Cooper Morris
Two children were born to this union:
Mr. Morris ran the Chevrolet garage in Wayland for forty

44 Descuptian 3t Enveonment 3nd Ouibunsings

this residence faces south.
rear.

Situated in the middle of the block,
It has several large trees on the spacious lot & a barn to the

5 Suuices ol Inlanmanon
Mrs. Morgan C. Morris
1896 Atlas
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43.

window west of the door and paired windows on the east & west facades.

years. His grandfather, Gerard Morgan Cooper, rode to this area on horseback from
Virginia & decided it looked like the place to settle. The house is built of

native lumber from Winchester. It is significant for its outstanding architecture.







WINCHESTER

Winchester sits in Section 25 of Jackson Township. It was laid out
in July of 1837 to contain eight blocks and a public square. An addition,
which continued around the original town, was added in 1857 by Washington
Dunbar. Paris Judy was responsible for starting the first store. Other
Tater merchandisers were Samuel Banks, Mr. Fleck, Mr. Henshaw, John W.
Dunbar, Samuel Dunbar, and Samuel Taylor. A grist-mill & a wool carding
business were set up. In 1878 the population reached 250. By 1897 there
were at least forty homes in Winchester plus two dry goods stores, two black-
smith shops, three doctors, two churches, and a fine school. This was a
"dry town" and no whiskey or gambling was allowed. The churches were
Christian & Methodist, only one remains today. The surrounding farmland
is of high quality & the town did a fairly prosperous business in the past.
It now consists of approximately nineteen buildings.
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M
(2. Funwer Seacnphion gl important Fustuies  p yoy of five 4/4 rectangular shaped windows is located along

the south facade. These have trabeated headers. A pent roofed entry vestibule has been add-
ed to the front facade (E). It features a single leaf door on the front and small square win-
dows on the side walls. The school was heated by stoves. It has asbestos siding which covers
the original clapboard. The foundation under the addition is poured concrete, the original
structure has a molded concrete block foundation.

LA

43 niaiy o0d Simhaance winchester had a school here by 1887 and probably earlier as the town
originated in 1837. By 1878 the population was 250. The school closed operation at the end
of the 1951-52 term.~ Martha Eagon was the last teacher. The district voted in 1955-56 to
join the Pleasant Hill District (which was quite large) just to the east. The Winchester

%ﬁ}el98énl€%§§régﬁo‘gi? number 79. The building is important as a typical example of the turn-of-

< Descnphan 3 Enviroament and Quibunaings

The school sits in the small town of Winchester & faces east.
It is just north of Highway H. '
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WYACONDA

According to a 1910 Wyaconda newspaper, Wyaconda is an Indian word
which means "Beautiful Spirit" and the name comes from the creek three miles
east of town. The town was organized when the Santa Fe opened its line be-
tween Chicago & Kansas City in 1887. Dr. W.C. McReynolds bought the first
town Tot in 1888 & that May the school district was organized. In 1890 the
first public school building was erected at a cost of $1,000. That same
year, Wyaconda College was built. It only functioned for three years at
which time the school district bought it & used it as a grade school. The
area voters petitioned the county court to incorporate Wyaconda in 1892,
this was carried out. It was voted to make Wyaconda a fourth class city in
1899. - The Wyaconda Christian Church was built in 1887-1888 by the Congdon
Brothers. The First Baptist Church was built in 1889 and the Methodist
Church was built in 1891. The town is located in Section 32 of Wyaconda
Township. It now has 359 inhabitants and about 198 structures.

Wyaconda had three banks in the past: the Wyaconda Savings Bank, the

Peoples Bank of Myaconda, & the Farmers & Traders Bank. A prosperous Ford
garage was located here. Roland Culbertson had the first car dealership.

At his residence he built a grist mill which matched his house in appearance.
He also sold coal. Morgan 0i1 Company originated here in the 1920's or before.
They operated a tank wagon. A brick kiln was at the east end of town. George'
Stein fabricated cement blocks.
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42, Funner Sescnption ol Imporiant Fadtuies e £ront facade has a square bell tower built onto the
north end. This serves”the entry vestibule. Its roof rises into a pyramidal shape & has
four gabled dormers. A double leaf entrance is on the east wall of the tower. It has a
diamond paned Gothic arched transom. The front gable facade has two gothic arched windows
of an elongated rectangular shape with four panes in the lower half. Shorter gable roofed
ells protrude on the south & west. The west ell is shorter in height than the main block of
the church. A pent roofed addition extends across the rear. The exposed basement has three

light rectanqular windows. A flat cap shelters the front entrance.

:

43 hostory end Siymihcance This congregation was organized in 1888. The group decided to erect a
church at their March 23, 1888 meeting. Their first pastor was Elder J.T. Suter. Sunday
School was implemented the following year with J.D. Smulling as supervisor. Their building
was erected in 1889 at a cost of $1,000.

The church is important as an example of a t{pical style of building for religious
structures & for its importance_in the religious life of Wyaconda.

44 Descuption of Enveonment and Quiduidings The church faces northeast & sits at the northwest corner
of the intersection of Main & Hannibal Streets. '
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Frontuge on Roay

2, Fuither Cescnptiun ol Impodant Foatures The church's main block rises up to what would be the height
for a two story building, although this is a one story structure. Front facade windows are
gothic arched & have a rectangular shape. Heavy hood molding & tracery in the top sash are
noteworthy details. A square bell tower rests at the northwest corner & also serves as an
entry vestibule. The double leaf doors open onto raised concrete steps & have a flat cap
overhang. A three light gothic arched transom extends across the door. An open air belfry
caps the tower & the bell remains. Four square corner posts have a spindle frieze & a spin-
dle balustrade located in the gpace between. At cornerg of the posts are cutwork brackets (co
43 ristoiy end Swmihicance The fiyst pastor for the Christian church in Wyaconda was E.J. Smith.
He preached the first sermons in 1887 in an empty store building in town. The congregation
made a commitment toserect a building & had the work done by the Congdon Brothers between
September 1887 & January 1888. The building was completed & dedicated in January 1888.
Elder J.C. Risk of Canton conducted the dedication. Sunday school was started in 1887.
(cont)
The church sits at the west edge of town & faces onto
Jefferson Street (Highway A). It looks to. the northwest and sits upon a spacious lot. A
well is in the rear (S).

44 Dasciptiun of Envionment any Ouibundings
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42,

43.

with pendants. The eaves are highlighted with small brackets & the roof rises in a

truncated hip design which is crowned with iron ridgecresting.

The rear ell has a single leaf entrance which is raised above ground level & no
longer has stairs, making it non-functional.
the basement entrance.
window.

A small addition on the west side has
The west gable end of the main block has a double gothic

John P. Gustin was the first elder ordained.

John A. Turner & John Caldwell were
the first deacons.

In 1906 the vestibule was added for $500.

The church continues in use today & is a good example of the vernacular church
of the late 1880's. In 1887 another Christian Church was in operation in Winchester.

Wyaconda's church is also significant for its long standing role in the religious
life of the community.
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Frontuge on Roay

42 Funner Sescnptun ol Imporant Fadtuies gy £ront facade is trimmed with a porch that extends across
three bays & is upheld by turned posts. It has a square spindle frieze & cutwork brackets.
Windows are 4/4 square shaped double sash with trim in a plain style. The central front
entrance is the single leaf type. In the rear, a two story ell extends westward. Built on
both the north & south corners are pent rooms (one story). The south addition is an enclos-
ed pent porch.

43 mesiory «0d SWMNCINCE ot Board owned this property in 1922. The Vernie Frys also lived here
& rented the house. In 1933 the Sturgeons owned the house. They had a butchering business.
Tim & Helena Sturgeon sent their payments to the sister of Kurt Beard whose married name was
Rosencrantz (Bessie). In about 1938 the Hugills, Herbert & Belma, bought this place. In

the more recent past, John Nichols got possession of the property. It has been vacant for
(cont)

The house faces east. Several outbuildings are to the
rear. Its location is in the southwest corner of town. A stonykﬁ;ck carriage/horse tetherj

4 Descnption of Enveioament and Quibudaings

ring remains in the front yard. A well is in the backyard. RN I
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43. some time. The house is significant as a good example of the continued use
evolution of the I-house style.
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2. Funiner Caescoptiun ol imponiant Fuatures  ap ornate cast iron facade highlights this building. The

cast iron cornice has short

between the upper three bays.
The front (NE) facade at first level has a single leaf door at the north corner.
display window comprises the central bay &a small display window makes up the last bay.
Square transoms are over the end bays while a large three light transom extends across the
A wooden paneled kickplate is directly below the windows.
extends across the front facade & contains the painted words "Gerth & Baskett".

center window.

stubby brackets & is molded.

Paired corinthian columns are
The center bay at upper level is a single leaf entrance.

A large

A flat overhang
A (cont)

43 history ey Symhicdnce Pavne /Gerth owns a funeral home & furniture store at 115 S. Main in
A combination furniture store & undertaking busi-

Memphis.

Baskett were the proprietors.

They also own this structure.
ness,"Gerth & Baskeit} was in this location at least by the 1910's.
Mrs. Fred Gerth's sister married George Baskett.
school teacher & the superintendant but changed his occupation to be  a businessman.

Fred Gerth & George

He was a
There
(cont)

w Descnpuion of Enveonmént 3nd Ouibun

aings

the middle of the central business district.

This structure faces northeast onto Main Street & sits in

49 Suuices 01, 1niQemanon
Kath